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          1  COMMITTEE ON FIRE AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Good afternoon,

          3  ladies and gentlemen. I am Council Member Larry

          4  Warden, and this is a hearing of the Committee on

          5  Fire and Criminal Justice Services.

          6                 Today the Committee will be

          7  conducting an oversight hearing concerning the

          8  merger of the Fire Department and the City Emergency

          9  Medical Services. March 17th marked the third

         10  anniversary of the merger and for the past two years

         11  the Public Safety Committee has conducted this

         12  hearing, examining the progress of the merger.

         13                 Recently oversight of the Fire

         14  Department has become the jurisdiction of the newly

         15  created Fire and Criminal Justice Services

         16  Committee.

         17                 In October of 1995, the Fire

         18  Department issued a proposal calling for the

         19  transfer of Emergency Medical Services and general

         20  ambulance services from the Health and Hospitals

         21  Corporation to the Fire Department.

         22                 The Committee on Public Safety

         23  considered the proposal at hearings in November of

         24  '95 and January of 1996. On February 15th, '96, the

         25  Council enacted Intro. No. 651-A which authorized
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          2  the Department to provide ambulance and emergency

          3  services. This enabled the merger to occur.

          4                 However, the Council did not enact

          5  651-A until after the Mayor and Speaker Vallone

          6  acting on behalf of the City Council executed a

          7  Memorandum of Understanding which set forth the

          8  terms and conditions pursuant to which the merger

          9  would occur.

         10                 The MOU required the Department to

         11  create the Department to create a Fire/EMS Task

         12  Force and an independent Medical Advisory Committee.

         13  In the MOU committed to a goal of a response time

         14  under six minutes for basic life support units in 90

         15  percent of life-threatening incidents. The response

         16  time between eight and ten minutes for paramedics in

         17  90 percent of life-threatening incidents.

         18                 The Department also committed to a

         19  response time of under ten minutes in 90 percent of

         20  non-life-threatening cases. In addition, the

         21  Department committed to establishing community-based

         22  EMS stations throughout the City.

         23                 This hearing will examine the

         24  progress of the Fire Department in meeting the goals

         25  and mandates set forth in the MOU.
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          2                 Before we begin the testimony, I

          3  would like to express the Council's commitment to

          4  working with the Fire Department and the

          5  Administration in striving to attain the goals of

          6  the Fire and EMS merger.

          7                 We are joined today by my colleagues

          8  on my right, Council Member Madeline Provenzano,

          9  from the Bronx, and Council Member Oddo from Staten

         10  Island.

         11                 Our first witness will be

         12  Commissioner Thomas Von Essen, the Commissioner of

         13  the New York City Fire Department.

         14                 Good morning, Commissioner. Good

         15  afternoon, Commissioner.

         16                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Good

         17  afternoon. Thanks, Larry. First I would like to

         18  apologize for giving you all of this stuff with such

         19  short notice.

         20                 We had good intentions after three

         21  years of having it all done, at least a week last

         22  week, and we had a tragedy that sort of set us back,

         23  and all of us that were needed to be final approving

         24  all of these reports were involved with that tragedy

         25  so we didn't really get it done until yesterday and
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          2  today.

          3                 Anyway, it is a pleasure to be with

          4  you this afternoon on the EMS merger. With me today

          5  is Deputy Commissioner Thomas Fitzpatrick, Acting

          6  Chief of the Department Peter Ganzi is sitting

          7  behind us. Chief of EMS Andy McCracken is sitting to

          8  my far left and Dr. Lorraine Giordano, Medical

          9  Director of EMS.

         10                 As we did last year, we have

         11  generated a report that tracks completion of state

         12  of activities agreed upon in the MOU. The report

         13  details progress against goals. We have completed

         14  many of the initiatives and some like the increase

         15  in ambulance tours, we have exceeded.

         16                 We have made substantial progress on

         17  others, I will be happy to answer any questions you

         18  have about the report, but first I would like to

         19  highlight a few additional programs and initiatives.

         20                 As you know, the merger of EMS with

         21  Fire has had a positive impact in a number of

         22  different areas, the most significant being

         23  ambulance response time, which has dropped almost a

         24  minute and a half to the most serious

         25  life-threatening medical emergencies. This has been
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          2  achieved through a series of improvements in

          3  management, fleet, dispatch and a creation of new

          4  EMS stations.

          5                 We anticipate the response time will

          6  drop even lower, as more stations come on line. On

          7  the fire operations side, CFR-D engines responded to

          8  more than 184,000 medical emergencies last year,

          9  resulting in the delivery of Emergency Medical

         10  Services to thousands with an average response time

         11  of less than five minutes.

         12                 As we mentioned in our testimony last

         13  month, we will be relocating EMS dispatch operations

         14  to the five borough fire communication centers

         15  within the next three years. Currently because of

         16  the difficulties with the communications building in

         17  Maspeth, the EMS communication system is housed in a

         18  temporary operation center and will be moving to One

         19  Metrotech where they will be housed until all of the

         20  work on the permanent move to the COs is completed.

         21  There have been great improvements in the emergency

         22  ambulance fleet.

         23                 Since the merger, the Department has

         24  expended $28 million on ambulances, and presently

         25  the emergency fleet is 415, with an average age of
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          2  3.8 years and a nine percent off-service rate.

          3                 Further, the Department has

          4  established a finite life cycle for all ambulance

          5  resources with a five-year replacement cycle.

          6                 This process will ensure the safe and

          7  reliable operation of these vehicles for EMS

          8  personnel, as well as the citizens of New York.

          9                 24 new Suburban-type vehicles have

         10  been outfitted with radios, emergency lighting and

         11  graphics and are in use as EMS conditions cars.

         12                 EMS conditions cars are staffed by

         13  EMS captains or lieutenants who respond to field

         14  assignments and conduct field monitoring of units

         15  within their assigned battalions.

         16                 This monitoring enhances service

         17  delivery in the field. The new Suburbans replace

         18  many older and run-down vehicles in use by the EMS

         19  commands since before the merger.

         20                 We are currently in negotiations to

         21  finalize the Automatic Vehicle Locator, AVL system.

         22  AVL is the leading edge of technology, using the

         23  Global Positioning Satellite system, known as GPS,

         24  with state-of-the-art communications systems to

         25  precisely track the location of resources.
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          2                 This will provide us with the ability

          3  to know where all emergency resources are and

          4  provide for the most accurate recommendations for

          5  resource response to an assignment. A consultant is

          6  currently being sought to prepare a bid process for

          7  this system.

          8                 It is hoped that the integration of

          9  this technology will reduce response time to

         10  assignment thereby saving lives.

         11                 As you know, the Medical Committee

         12  established as part of the MOU has continued to meet

         13  and monitor medical service improvement and quality

         14  of care. Not only has this oversight been thorough,

         15  but the input of the Committee has been insightful.

         16  Several committee recommendations have been

         17  incorporated into EMS procedures.

         18                 Dr. Giordano will have more to say

         19  about the Medical Committee in her remarks.

         20                 Additional specific program and

         21  training enhancements are listed in the report, but

         22  are described, written down briefly here. As stated,

         23  during last year's testimony this Department has

         24  developed additional promotional opportunities for

         25  EMS command personnel to join the uniformed ranks of
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          2  the Fire Department.

          3                 On February 27th, 1999, the first

          4  ever promotional examination for firefighter for EMS

          5  personnel only was conducted by the Department of

          6  Citywide Administrative Services. Once ratified,

          7  this list will provide a list of eligible

          8  intra-department candidates for promotion to the

          9  uniformed title of firefighter.

         10                 In addition, appointments have begun

         11  off the EMS trainee list, which consists of

         12  eligibles with college credits who will be trained

         13  to be EMTs with the City, and after three months of

         14  training will be promoted to the EMT title. The

         15  Department will be continuing with its paramedic

         16  upgrade program which affords the opportunity for

         17  our own EMTs who have obtained paramedic

         18  certification from outside schools to be promoted to

         19  the title of paramedics. Further, in November '98,

         20  an EMS lieutenants exam administered by DCAS for

         21  eligible EMTs and paramedics.

         22                 In addition, a total of 19 captains

         23  have been appointed since the merger.

         24                 The Department has developed and

         25  implemented a pilot project in the New York City are
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          2  to allow the population of asthmatics to benefit

          3  from early access to broncho-dilator therapy. EMTs

          4  have been trained in the proper protocol and now

          5  have the ability to administer nebulized albuterol.

          6  This skill was previously only performed by

          7  paramedics.

          8                 The introduction of this program will

          9  broaden the base of medical service available in

         10  response to a critical need. All EMS personnel have

         11  received training in response to identifying and

         12  medical protocol of victims exposed to chemical

         13  and/or biological agents that could be used in

         14  terrorist attacks.

         15                 All FDNY EMS ambulance resources and

         16  support vehicles have been equipped with medications

         17  to treat patients exposed to chemical nerve agents.

         18                 This training dove-tails with the

         19  training that has been provided to Fire Department

         20  personnel as well.

         21                 The course work of the anti-terrorist

         22  or consequence management training is provided by

         23  experts at the federal level, who, working through

         24  the Mayor's Office of Emergency Management, are sent

         25  into municipalities by the federal government as
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          2  part of a nationwide readiness program.

          3                 EMS HAZ-TAC unit staffing has been

          4  increased. EMS HAZ-TAC units are specially equipped

          5  units staffed by personnel who have undergone

          6  additional training in the proper handling of

          7  patients contaminated by hazardous materials.

          8                 Prior to the merger there was only

          9  one ALS HAZ-TAC unit and two BLS HAZ-TAC units.

         10  Currently there is one ALS HAZ-TAC unit and one BLS

         11  HAZ-TAC unit in each borough, with the exception of

         12  Staten Island, which is staffed, with one BLS

         13  HAZ-TAC unit.

         14                 In addition, a Citywide emergency

         15  response squad HAZ-TAC unit exists, to support major

         16  operations. This increase in special capability

         17  mirrors the initiative undertaken in the Fire

         18  Department to establish squad companies in each

         19  borough to respond not only to increased potential

         20  threat of chemical and biological weapons but to the

         21  increased involvement of hazardous materials in our

         22  every day firefighting effort.

         23                 To ensure the safety of EMS

         24  personnel, we have implemented the use of safety IV

         25  catheters and safety syringes. These devices are
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          2  designed to easily and quickly shield needles that

          3  are used to administer IV fluids and/or medications

          4  to patients, minimizing the threat of a needle stick

          5  in the pre-hospital setting.

          6                 A medication insert exchange program

          7  has been implemented, intended to provide

          8  pre-stocked inserts, containing all medications that

          9  are used by paramedics to treat patients. After

         10  using medications on an assignment, units can

         11  respond back to a facility and exchange a used

         12  insert for a fully stocked one. Prior to this

         13  program, paramedics were required to manually

         14  restock individual medications. With this program,

         15  units can immediately return to service. All

         16  paramedics have been equipped with the new Lifepak

         17  12 cardiac monitor/defibrillator/pacemaker units.

         18  With the distribution of this lighter unit, weighing

         19  only 7.5 pounds, paramedics can put the unit to use

         20  much more quickly.

         21                 In addition, the modular design of

         22  the Lifepak 12 will allow the Department to easily

         23  upgrade the equipment as new treatment devices and

         24  options become available.

         25                 All vehicle mounted oxygen tanks have
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          2  been converted from the larger sized "H" tanks weigh

          3  considerably less, allowing crews to change them

          4  more quickly and return to service more

          5  expeditiously. Further, additional portable "D"

          6  sized tanks were purchased, and placed on

          7  ambulances. These additional tanks reduce

          8  off-service restock time.

          9                 In addition to all of these programs

         10  and activities, we continue our EMS station building

         11  program. The most current status appears in your

         12  effort.

         13                 To recap we have nine new stations

         14  built, three in development, under construction, and

         15  are still trying to finalize real estate decisions

         16  on six others.

         17                 Additionally, we are working on Land

         18  Use reviews for another six sites. As these stations

         19  come on line we anticipate an even greater decline

         20  in response time by units who will now be housed

         21  closer to their service areas.

         22                 As you can see, we have achieved a

         23  great deal in three years and we have an aggressive

         24  agenda ahead. I look forward to working with the

         25  Committee in the future to ensure the smooth
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          2  transition continues.

          3                 I now introduce Dr. Giordano for some

          4  brief remarks and then welcome your questions.

          5                 DR. GIORDANO: Good afternoon. I am

          6  pleased to appear before you in my capacity as

          7  Medical Director of the Fire Department and report

          8  on the medical activities of the Department and the

          9  Medical Advisory Task Force.

         10                 As you know, the Medical Advisory

         11  Task Force was established pursuant to the March

         12  1996 Memorandum of Understanding which transferred

         13  the functions of the City's Emergency Medical

         14  Service to the Fire Department.

         15                 The Task Force is comprised of ten

         16  physicians from outside the Department, as well as

         17  representatives of the Department's Office of

         18  Medical Affairs in the EMS command.

         19                 Its mission is to advise the Fire

         20  Commissioner regarding matters related to the

         21  quality of patient care provided by the EMS command,

         22  and the effects of the merger on the quality of care

         23  and clinical operations of the command.

         24                 In practice, the scope of the task

         25  force activities has encompassed the entire gamut of
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          2  medical activities and oversight within the Fire

          3  Department.

          4                 The Task Force meets regularly on a

          5  monthly basis and reviews medical operational

          6  communications, administrative and training issues

          7  that affect pre-hospital care delivery and the EMS

          8  command.

          9                 During this past year, activities

         10  described in the 1998 report of the Medical Advisory

         11  Task Force on the EMS merger have continued to

         12  progress.

         13                 Firefighters continue to be trained

         14  as certified first responders with the utilization

         15  of semi-automatic defibrillators. This brings the

         16  life-saving skills of CPR and defibrillation to a

         17  larger segment of the population in the first

         18  critical minutes after a cardiac or a respiratory

         19  arrest.

         20                 Physician oversight has expanded in

         21  compliance with State mandate. There are now seven

         22  full-time board certified Emergency Physicians

         23  overseeing the clinical activities of FDNY's

         24  paramedics, EMT's and CFR-D's.

         25                 The Triage Algorithms for Priority
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          2  Dispatch continue to undergo detailed review to

          3  refine both the questioning and the response pattern

          4  to eliminate dual dispatch and ensure more

          5  appropriate utilization of resources and the

          6  provision of medical care to meet the patient's

          7  needs.

          8                 For example, the call type

          9  encompassing stroke patients was moved to a higher

         10  priority in response to new therapeutic

         11  interventions.

         12                 The percentage of calls for which an

         13  Advanced Life Support response is recommended, and

         14  to which an ALS unit actually responds continues to

         15  improve.

         16                 During the last year 514 paramedics

         17  were certified. They completed both the State and

         18  regional certification process, and represent a

         19  measure of paramedic strength for the EMS system.

         20                 Twenty-three hospital audits were

         21  conducted during the last year. This represents more

         22  than a third of the ambulance destinations in the

         23  regional 911 system. There were 20 facility

         24  redesignations and two new designations, and a new

         25  Trauma Center entered the system.
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          2                 The Department has continued its

          3  commitment to supplying the most updated medical

          4  equipment by providing all paramedics with the new

          5  Lifepak 12 Cardiac Monitor/Defibrillabor/Pacemaker

          6  Units.

          7                 This state-of-the-art equipment

          8  provides pre-hospital personnel not only with the

          9  ability to electrically pace the hearts of patients

         10  who do not respond to drug or medical treatment in

         11  the field, but also to provide critical life-saving

         12  defibrillation during a cardiac arrest. In addition,

         13  its modular design will allow upgrades as new

         14  treatment devices and options become available.

         15                 With the State Department of Health's

         16  blessing, the Department has implemented a

         17  demonstration project allowing EMT's to provide

         18  nebulized Albuterol, a critical medication for

         19  asthmatics, to patients experiencing respiratory

         20  distress.

         21                 This has allowed many more asthmatics

         22  to receive medical therapy prior to the arrival of

         23  the paramedics or their delivery to an Emergency

         24  Department.

         25                 The Department completed
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          2  implementation of a program ensuring the security of

          3  narcotics in tamperproof containers.

          4                 In response to the changing

          5  environment of health care, guidelines for the

          6  development of algorithms for triage, patient

          7  education, patient access to medical care, and

          8  reimbursement strategies were completed by the

          9  progressive efforts of the Medical Director working

         10  with representatives from the Regional Medical

         11  Advisory Committee, the New York State Medical

         12  Society and the State Department of Health Office of

         13  Managed Care.

         14                 FDNY's commitment to public education

         15  and community service continue with members of the

         16  Office of Medical Affairs providing lectures,

         17  visiting community boards, schools, and senior

         18  centers, as well as participating in health fairs,

         19  Brooklyn Connection Health Consortium, the Kiwanis

         20  Pediatric Trauma Intervention and Prevention

         21  Program, the Public Access Defibrillation EMS Week

         22  Activities and the Sudden Infant Death Syndrome

         23  Support Program, to name a few. Burn prevention and

         24  home safety are integral parts of presentations

         25  given regularly by the Fire Safety Education Unit.
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          2                 FDNY's Medical Control Unit, Office

          3  of Medical Affairs, and Bureau of Training continue

          4  to educate 16 Emergency Medicine residents per month

          5  in EMS activities and on-line medical control.

          6  Education and training of hospital-based physicians

          7  also continues, and an academic fellowship agreement

          8  with a prominent medical school is almost completed.

          9                 Continued cooperation with Correction

         10  Health, the Department of Health and the Office of

         11  Medical Affairs has resulted in the expansion of the

         12  Court Pens Prison Health Program, providing medical

         13  screening to over 20,000 detainees per month, and

         14  identification of prisoners' health care needs and

         15  infection control risks. This has not only helped

         16  improve the health of detainees, but also made the

         17  City safer from infectious disease by the

         18  identification of recalcitrant TB patients.

         19                 FDNY personnel participated with the

         20  National Highway Traffic and Safety

         21  Administraton/Aiken Brain Resuscitation Project to

         22  develop National Pre-hospital Guidelines for the

         23  Management of Head Injured Patients.

         24                 FDNY continues to integrate medical

         25  field response to mass casualty incidents, and has
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          2  worked aggressively to integrate hospitals into the

          3  Incident Command System.

          4                 It has participated in disaster

          5  preparedness activities with the Office of Emergency

          6  Management, Department of Health, regional hospitals

          7  and other appropriate agencies. The commitment to

          8  reduction in Post-traumatic Stress Syndrome

          9  continues with the availability of Critical Incident

         10  Stress Debriefing for personnel in accordance with

         11  national recommendations. The efforts of the

         12  Counseling Unit and FDNY's programs for employee

         13  assistance, needle stick and back injury prevention

         14  all help to promote stress reduction for personnel.

         15                 Revisions of the Ambulance Call

         16  Report, a medical record, in conjunction with

         17  federal standards and State Department of Health

         18  mandates, continues to occur to ensure compliance

         19  and improved documentation and data collection.

         20                 The Department continues to work with

         21  the Transit Authority to improve medical care for

         22  their sick customers while maintaining operational

         23  efficiency for the people of New York.

         24                 Continued compliance with

         25  requirements of Article 30 of the Public Health Law
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          2  in the areas of credentialing and mandatory

          3  continuous quality improvement occur on a daily

          4  basis.

          5                 All personnel have received training

          6  in identifying and treating victims of chemical and

          7  biological agents that could be used in terrorist

          8  attacks.

          9                 All ambulances and selected support

         10  vehicles have been equipped with medications to

         11  treat these patients, and planning/educational

         12  activities with all of the 911 Receiving Hospitals,

         13  there are 60 in the City, are ongoing.

         14                 The critical On-line Medical Control

         15  Unit currently based at Maspeth is in the process of

         16  relocation into new quarters with more advanced

         17  technology.

         18                 This unit receives approximately

         19  4,000 calls a month for medical control orders,

         20  narcotic utilization, consults, transportation

         21  decisions and physician authorization for patients

         22  refusing care and/or transportation to a particular

         23  hospital. Staff also deal with critical issues such

         24  as Do Not Resuscitate, DNR, Orders, guardianship of

         25  minors, determination of capacity of a patient who
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          2  wishes to refuse care, Ambulance Destination

          3  Facility notification for special needs patients,

          4  and social service referrals for Adult Protective

          5  Services and Visiting Nurse services.

          6                 FDNY continues full participation in

          7  local, regional, state and national Emergency

          8  Medical Committees and organizations. These

          9  activities remain critical to keeping FDNY on the

         10  cutting edge of delivering quality pre-hospital care

         11  with effective medical oversight as provided by

         12  physicians both internal and external to the

         13  Department. Such oversight must continue to

         14  encompass the medical administrative, operational,

         15  legal, investigative, disciplinary, labor relations,

         16  personnel, program design, planning, budget and

         17  training processes as they impact on out-of-hospital

         18  patient care delivery.

         19                 As you can see, it has been a busy

         20  year for the Fire Department, its physicians, and

         21  the Medical Advisory Task Force. We have

         22  accomplished an enormous amount of work since the

         23  merger, but, as with everything else in life, there

         24  is still more to do. We have enjoyed and are

         25  grateful for the strong support of the Mayor, the
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          2  Fire Commissioner, all the management staff, the

          3  field personnel, and the medical community in New

          4  York City.

          5                 Teamwork continues to be the key to

          6  our success. I look forward to the continued

          7  challenges that we will face in this new health care

          8  environment, and with the commitment of all parties,

          9  I believe we will continue to be the largest and

         10  best pre-hospital care providers in the communities

         11  we serve.

         12                 Thank you for your continued interest

         13  and support. I will be happy to answer any

         14  questions.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you for

         16  your testimony. And before we begin, let me welcome

         17  Council Member Walter McCaffrey from the Borough of

         18  Queens, who has joined us.

         19                 Dr. Giordano, in July of '98, almost

         20  a year ago, before the Public Safety Committee we

         21  were discussing the impact or the effect of the

         22  merger on patient care. And you had defined the

         23  survival rate of cardiac arrest patients as those

         24  people who experience a return to the spontaneous

         25  pulse and circulation and arrive at the hospital
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          2  with a heartbeat.

          3                 Does the Department continue to

          4  measure its effort, only in terms of pre-hospital

          5  survival rates?

          6                 DR. GIORDANO: We look at pre-hospital

          7  survival rates and hospital outcome as it is

          8  supplied to us and it is available from the

          9  hospital.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: What does the

         11  recent pre-hospital data indicate?

         12                 DR. GIORDANO: Basically the data

         13  indicates that the numbers are remaining the same,

         14  but what we have noticed is with the increase in the

         15  response time, we feel that we are getting to

         16  patients sooner so that we are preventing them from

         17  going into cardiac arrest. There has been a

         18  significant increase in the number of respiratory

         19  arrests and our preliminary investigations of this

         20  reveals two possible causes:

         21                 One, clearly the increase in asthma

         22  deaths that we have -- or asthma incidents, disease

         23  process that we see in the City. But the other is

         24  that we are catching patients before they go into

         25  cardiac arrest, so that that seems to be the
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          2  direction we are going in.

          3                 As we continue to review the medical

          4  literature, the literature seems to feel that this

          5  is the best that cities, large cities with

          6  populations over a million can achieve, and I refer

          7  you to, there has been several meetings, the

          8  National Association of EMS physicians has also been

          9  the cardiac arrest study, that was one of their

         10  conclusions five years ago.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: One of the things

         12  that concerns me, as it relates to the cardiac

         13  arrest patients, when responding to a 911 call, an

         14  ambulance crew is required to transport all patients

         15  to the nearest approved hospital. Now, if you have a

         16  heart attack center or a hospital that is designated

         17  as a trauma hospital, in the New England Journal of

         18  Medicine, patients admitted to hospitals that treat

         19  the lowest volumes of heart attacks were

         20  approximately 17 percent more likely to die than

         21  those admitted to a hospital keeping the highest

         22  volume of heart attacks. Have you had an opportunity

         23  to study those findings?

         24                 DR. GIORDANO: We have looked at those

         25  findings, and if you read into that further, even
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          2  the officers do not recommend changing the current

          3  patterns because they feel that not only it might be

          4  the volume, but also the treatment that is

          5  prescribed. And one of the things that they talk

          6  about is the utilization of aspirin, and we now have

          7  brought that into the pre-hospital environment, we

          8  don't even wait until the patient gets into the

          9  hospital to give it to them, we give it to them

         10  right in the hospital environment, incorporated that

         11  into our protocols.

         12                 We have to be very cautious with the

         13  relationship between volume. I think we have seen

         14  that with the cardiac arrest, with the cardiac

         15  surgery studies that have gone on in New York State,

         16  and if you read Dr. Hennon's editorial on that

         17  article, he also advises, from School of Public

         18  Health, he also advises caution.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Well, I would

         20  agree with the caution, because operationally to me

         21  it would appear that the EMT or the paramedic would

         22  have to make a field judgment right in the field.

         23                 DR. GIORDANO: They are trained to do

         24  that. With the new Lifepak 12 they can do a full 12

         25  EKG, and they are trained to recognize heart attacks
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          2  right in the field so they can start the therapy. So

          3  we do already have that in place.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: They beat me to

          5  it. They asked me to ask this question, I was

          6  getting ready to do it.

          7                 One of the things that we have

          8  noticed has been a report article in May 7th Daily

          9  News, it indicates that between July and December

         10  transports from the EMS systems dropped 49 percent

         11  at Harlem Hospital, 43 percent at Queens Hospital,

         12  33 percent at Kings County and 30 percent at

         13  Bellevue, while at the same time the total City-wide

         14  ambulance runs by EMS have remained unchanged.

         15                 We are concerned about the

         16  precipitous drop in EMS runs to municipal hospitals.

         17                 DR. GIORDANO: I think there is two

         18  reasons for changes in numbers that you would see.

         19  One is our system has expanded. There are now 60

         20  hospitals in the 911 system; and two, there has been

         21  a change in services provided at different

         22  facilities as they have affiliated. For example, if

         23  a hospital drops an orthopedic service we will no

         24  longer bring patients with orthopedic injuries to

         25  that facility. So, those kinds of things, as
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          2  hospitals change their service patterns, affect what

          3  is going on.

          4                 We basically use the 911 ambulance

          5  destinations that have been approved by the

          6  Ambulance Committee. They have all gone through an

          7  appropriate designation and reauditing process, and

          8  as I referred to it, we have done about 23 audits

          9  this past year, which we try and do them every three

         10  years to ensure that the hospitals continue to meet

         11  standards that the medical community and the members

         12  of that group have felt are minimum standards for

         13  patients in those facilities.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: What percent of

         15  EMS transports go to municipal hospitals?

         16                 MR. McCRACKEN: (Not identified) if I

         17  may comment on that news article, those numbers are

         18  wrong.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay, please

         20  enlighten us.

         21                 MR. McCRACKEN: Okay.

         22                 Dr. G has described what could happen

         23  on certain criteria which is driven by the regional

         24  protocol on transport of patients, however, the

         25  percentages that we reviewed only slightly by a
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          2  point each way, not by 43 or 33 percent. So those

          3  numbers are absolutely wrong.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay. So, what

          5  percent of transport do go through municipal

          6  hospitals, as opposed to private hospitals or

          7  voluntary hospitals?

          8                 MR. McCRACKEN: About 35 percent of

          9  the transports.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thirty-five. And

         11  what was it a year ago?

         12                 MR. McCRACKEN: Thirty-four.

         13  Thirty-four.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thirty-four

         15  percent.

         16                 MR. McCRACKEN: It is only off by a

         17  percent.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Are a lot of the

         19  numbers increasing? I am concerned about --

         20                 MR. McCRACKEN: They are decreasing.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: They are

         22  decreasing.

         23                 MR. McCRACKEN: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: The number of

         25  runs to the municipal hospitals are decreasing?
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          2                 MR. McCRACKEN: By a percent.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: By a percent?

          4                 MR. McCRACKEN: Right.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay.

          6                 What is your protocol for determining

          7  whether a run goes to a voluntary or a municipal

          8  hospital?

          9                 MR. McCRACKEN: The criteria was

         10  developed by the region REMSCO.  It is a patient

         11  necessity, the patient's choice, nearest 911

         12  receiving, that is a designated 911 specialty

         13  referral.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay, do we have

         15  those protocols?

         16                 Would you be kind enough to share the

         17  protocols with the Committee?

         18                 MR. McCRACKEN: Sure.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: So that we would

         20  have them.

         21                 Council Member McCaffrey.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Thank you

         23  very much.

         24                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         25                 Commissioner, first of all, I have to
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          2  compliment the work of yourself and Dr. Giordano and

          3  your staff, and there is obviously much that has yet

          4  to be finalized. But during the merger controversy,

          5  one of the key elements that some of us were

          6  concerned about was the issue of morale. And key to

          7  the effectiveness of the system is what the level of

          8  morale is and whether or not it diminishes the

          9  potential for maximum performance. And obviously you

         10  have been attentive in many ways as a Commissioner

         11  on this, so I have a number of questions.

         12                 First, in terms of what we are doing

         13  by way of providing adequacy for there to be a

         14  career ladder for EMTs, in light of the fact that we

         15  have not had for what is now a good period of time,

         16  whether it is two years or not, the paramedic

         17  certification program in place. There has been no

         18  training that has been out there in terms of that.

         19  So, tell us, for example, in that regard what is

         20  being done.

         21                 Secondly, if you could address within

         22  that whether or not it is your belief that within

         23  the current confines of the Department that we have

         24  the ability to retain our personnel so that we do

         25  not end up in essence having them receive all of
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          2  this type of expert training, and the best system in

          3  the United States and then they go elsewhere, how do

          4  we continue to attract and retain folks as a second

          5  aspect?

          6                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: There are

          7  lots of issues. We have not been able to do all of

          8  the things that we would like to do to change those

          9  from the past.

         10                 There is a salary structure, it is

         11  lower than it is in the private hospitals than in

         12  other areas, so people do leave for better jobs. I

         13  don't know what to do about that, other than raising

         14  the salaries. That would be nice but I am stuck with

         15  the structure that I have.

         16                 We have tried to, by putting up as

         17  many new stations as quickly as we can, we think

         18  that improving the working conditions in that area

         19  makes an improvement. We still are stuck with a lot

         20  of overtime that people, some people don't want to

         21  work, that has been a morale problem. We have tried

         22  to balance out the overtime more fairly. We get a

         23  lot of people because of their own particular

         24  personal interest, don't want to work overtime and

         25  don't want to be part of that sharing throughout the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            35

          1  COMMITTEE ON FIRE AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES

          2  Department, so we try to figure out ways to --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Do you have

          4  a sense when the paramedic training component is

          5  going to be back on-line?

          6                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: That part has

          7  been completed. The paramedic upgrade class of 1999,

          8  the first class February 3rd, 1999, 43 medics plus

          9  one lieutenant, upgrade of the second class on

         10  February 24th, was 44 medics and two captains, so

         11  the total paramedic upgrade was 90, that part was

         12  complete.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: And

         14  projected for -- what is the projection in terms of

         15  the understanding that that is has been the pool?

         16  So, what is the projection in terms of continuing

         17  pace in that regard?

         18                 MR. McCRACKEN: There are plans to do

         19  a fall class of approximately 25 more paramedics.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: When is

         21  that?

         22                 MR. McCRACKEN: The fall, September.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: One of the

         24  items, Commissioner, that the Council has been

         25  concerned about in the past and we once again put in
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          2  in terms of the stress is the set aside of money for

          3  the independent peer counseling program, and the

          4  Council has again put in this year $50,000 because

          5  we believe that obviously we have to go back beyond

          6  just what had been the refresher program and to

          7  really be able to expand this even more, and it is

          8  important that we say to you we understand this

          9  problem, that is why we wanted to participate

         10  financially in the assistance of this aspect and

         11  will continue to do it.

         12                 One of the other items here, and we

         13  are going to have this for a long period of time,

         14  the question as to whether or not the EMS personnel

         15  should be considered in essence uniformed personnel.

         16  They are members of the Fire Department, the

         17  question is whether or not they should receive

         18  uniformed status. We see that in some areas, in

         19  terms of items that have been sort of done in the

         20  past of a similar nature, whether it is in terms of

         21  EST (phonetic), et cetera. Tell us what the

         22  long-term intent is of the Department in that regard

         23  as to the treatment of our EMS workers.

         24                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Well, this is

         25  sort of a mix of personal view and City view and
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          2  former union president view and now commissioner

          3  view.

          4                 I think it would be wonderful if they

          5  became part of the uniformed forces. I think that

          6  there are lots of things that happen from when you

          7  started the merger three years ago and that actually

          8  takes place. I think that they have had successful

          9  bills passed in Albany, which I think might not have

         10  happened if they were still in HHC.

         11                 I think the union has done a terrific

         12  job of lobbying for some benefits that they probably

         13  tried for many years to get, and I think that this

         14  is a long, an ongoing process, that you sit down

         15  with labor relations and you look at the advantages

         16  of being in the uniformed forces and you look at

         17  some of the pretty ridiculous systems that we have

         18  got right now, as far as medic leave and light duty

         19  and line of duty and all of these other things that

         20  could be straightened out.

         21                 I think if you sit down and you work

         22  through all of those things there is a give and

         23  take, that that can be accomplished. But I am not

         24  the person to just do it.

         25                 If someone said to me do you think
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          2  they should be part of the uniformed force, I would

          3  say, yes, I think they are out in the street, they

          4  are doing an excellent job, I think that they are in

          5  harm's way often, not as much as a police officer

          6  and a firefighter, but they are in harm's way and

          7  they do a difficult job and face many contagious

          8  diseases and lots of lunatics in the street, so I

          9  think there is a lot to be said for it. But that is

         10  a labor relations and a negotiation.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Certainly

         12  from an observer's point of view your opinion,

         13  however, does carry some considerable weight in that

         14  regard and I am happy to hear the discretion that

         15  you give in this. Some of your commissioner

         16  colleagues may or may not be given the same high

         17  esteem as the Administration affords you in that

         18  regard, so hopefully they will give some sense of

         19  what you are providing by way of direction.

         20                 Lastly, the question that comes for

         21  all of us is whether or not there are adequate

         22  resources to continue to meet the goals that are set

         23  out in terms of merger and really what New Yorkers

         24  expect of us.

         25                 So the question is, do we have to end
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          2  up having more resources brought onto line so that

          3  we can end up in terms of staffing being able to

          4  provide the type of services that are needed.

          5                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman, that is my

          6  last question.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Council Member

          8  Provenzano.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you,

         10  Mr. Chairman.

         11                 I have what probably appears to be a

         12  very elementary request. I may be the only one in

         13  the City of New York that doesn't totally understand

         14  this, so bear with me.

         15                 Could you give me a little scenario?

         16  Someone calls 911, stroke victim, which is priority,

         17  right? What happens? Basically I am confused because

         18  we talked about first responder, we talked about the

         19  ambulance, so I have a problem picturing what

         20  actually happens when you call 911, who gets there,

         21  who does what? If an ambulance arrives, what is the

         22  staffing for the ambulance?

         23                 They are making you answer all of the

         24  questions.

         25                 DR. GIORDANO: That's okay, we can
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          2  handle it. All right, when you first call, the first

          3  person to answer the phone will be the police call

          4  receiving operator. They take the basic demographic

          5  information. From that point they identify either a

          6  medical health-related emergency or fire-related

          7  emergency or police-related emergency.

          8                 If they identify a medical-related

          9  emergency, it then goes to the call receiving

         10  operator at the EMS side. They will then go through

         11  a set of predetermined questions. Those questions

         12  are in order of medical priority of most acute

         13  situations. So they will say is the patient awake

         14  and breathing? If the person answers no, they will

         15  immediately say this is a cardiac arrest scenario

         16  and will start the resources off by transmitting a

         17  specific call type to a dispatcher. The dispatcher

         18  then has a computer system which comes up with a

         19  suggested list of units from those that are

         20  available and hopefully in proximity to that

         21  address, and they will send that resource.

         22                 Now, how do they determine what the

         23  resource is? When the EMS call receiving operator

         24  goes through a series of questions, they identify a

         25  call type, there are about 56 or so different call
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          2  types.

          3                 Each call type already has a

          4  medically determined set or responses. So, for a

          5  cardiac arrest, everything in the system goes. If it

          6  is a small laceration, it will be a BLS. So we

          7  prioritize the number of units and the type of units

          8  going, based on the seriousness of the call that we

          9  get from the caller.

         10                 The most serious calls we will get,

         11  the cardiac arrest call gets the engine company sent

         12  with a defibrillator, will get the paramedic unit

         13  and will get a basic life support unit.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Now, is

         15  that three --

         16                 DR. GIORDANO: Three separate, right.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Three

         18  separate pieces of equipment.

         19                 DR. GIORDANO: Three pieces and the

         20  engine company, right.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay.

         22                 DR. GIORDANO: And that kind of tapers

         23  off, depending upon the type of call. Some will only

         24  get an advanced life support ambulance, some will

         25  only get a basic life support ambulance. I guess the
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          2  difference, the difference on the staffing patterns.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: That is

          4  kind of one of the things I envisioned. And I do

          5  want you to continue --

          6                 DR. GIORDANO: Sure.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: -- But I

          8  just imagine a piece of, like a fire engine coming,

          9  it seems like such, I hate to say it, but almost

         10  like a waste of a fire engine. So, I --

         11                 DR. GIORDANO: They have the

         12  semi-automatic defibrillators, which can be placed

         13  on a patient if the patient is in a particular type

         14  of rhythm, that the machine converts to a regular

         15  heart rhythm, they can apply that immediately and

         16  start CPR, open the patient's airway.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: And

         18  someone in an ambulance cannot?

         19                 DR. GIORDANO: Someone in an ambulance

         20  can also do that. As each level goes, the skills are

         21  higher. The training is longer, the skills are

         22  higher.

         23                 So, the CFR-D is the most basic level

         24  of provider in the system.

         25                 The next level, the EMT, has
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          2  additional skills, and then the paramedic has the

          3  IV, the intravenous line, about 30 different

          4  medications, so they can do the full EKG with what

          5  they have. So, each tiered layer has additional

          6  skills that they can provide to the patient.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: But if we

          8  know it is someone that needs the ultimate and

          9  whatever, why can't we just send out the people that

         10  have all of that stuff?

         11                 DR. GIORDANO: The paramedic

         12  ambulance? It is a resource utilization issue. The

         13  number of paramedics in the system are less than the

         14  number of EMTs, so we try and use those resources

         15  for the most significant cases.

         16                 The response time, in addition,

         17  because most of the distribution of the engine

         18  companies, there are so many more they can get there

         19  faster, they have a quicker response time than the

         20  ambulances.

         21                 So, you want to send, because you

         22  have four minutes to do basic life support and eight

         23  minutes to do advance life support, you want to get

         24  the fastest appropriate level of care to the

         25  patients quicker. So, the engine company is the most
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          2  appropriate to go because they can start what is

          3  needed in the first four minutes. The paramedics

          4  then bring what is needed in eight minutes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: That is

          6  the way I envisioned it, and that is why I thought

          7  there was something wrong with me. But, again, I

          8  mean is there any plan to uncomplicate that, or is

          9  that the way it is going to be?

         10                 Again, I just see three or four units

         11  zeroing in on, you know, like I am thinking my block

         12  which is a narrow block.

         13                 DR. GIORDANO: Well, what we have been

         14  doing is we have been trying to look at all of those

         15  different call types. We really don't want to change

         16  a call type without study, and I will give you an

         17  example of that.

         18                 A woman in labor calls in and

         19  basically in New York City approximately 70 percent

         20  of the deliveries are high risk, so the initial

         21  feeling was that we should send our best trained

         22  people because you have two patients potentially,

         23  and usually when there is a problem it really gets

         24  very complicated, you need at least two providers

         25  there, one for the mother and one for the infant, so
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          2  we send the paramedics.

          3                 We were hearing from the paramedics

          4  that, well, really our skills aren't needed on these

          5  calls, most of them are routine deliveries which the

          6  EMT can handle.

          7                 We went back, we did a very detailed

          8  study of several hundred cases to see exactly how

          9  many times paramedic resources were required, how

         10  many times did they need that IV, how many times did

         11  they need medications for the pregnant patient. So,

         12  when we went back and studied it, we found it was a

         13  very, very small percentage of time. So, even though

         14  the delivery could be considered high risk delivery,

         15  we now knew that that level of skill was not needed

         16  in the field, so we were comfortable saying, okay,

         17  we are now going to change, we won't send the

         18  paramedic ambulance, we will send the basic life

         19  support ambulance to that patient, and then as a

         20  result, if they need help, then they can call for

         21  the paramedics, but we were saving the paramedics

         22  now for a heart attack victim, where their skills

         23  were really needed.

         24                 So, we go through each of those 56

         25  different call types, we keep trying to refine the
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          2  questions, depending upon the language that people

          3  are speaking, we try to refine the questions,

          4  depending upon what we find we are picking up in

          5  that group, as the diagnosis.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: And of

          7  course all of this adds to your response time, while

          8  you are trying to figure out all of this stuff.

          9                 DR. GIORDANO: Well, once we identify

         10  that call type, the ambulance is being sent, because

         11  that caller stays on the phone with the

         12  call-receiving operator, stays on the phone with the

         13  caller to provide pre-arrival instruction.

         14                 They will try, for example, if it is

         15  a cardiac arrest case, to teach them CPR over the

         16  phone. Or if it is a bleeding case, or whatever,

         17  they will try and tell them what to do while the

         18  ambulance is en route.

         19                 So, they don't wait until they are

         20  finished talking with the person and finding out

         21  what is going on, as soon as the call type, the

         22  computer goes to a dispatcher and they send the

         23  available unit.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: So, we

         25  have ambulances that have paramedics and we have
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          2  ambulances that have EMTs?

          3                 DR. GIORDANO: Right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: And no

          5  paramedics.

          6                 DR. GIORDANO: Correct. There are

          7  either two EMTs or two paramedics.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Fire guys?

          9                 DR. GIORDANO: Right.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay,

         11  thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Many of us read

         13  the newspapers and one of the benefits of hearings

         14  like that is that they get an opportunity to put the

         15  correct answer on the record as your colleagues did.

         16                 In a May 7th, I believe it was,

         17  article in the Daily News, it stated that the Fire

         18  Department has warned the EMS drivers last year that

         19  they would be disciplined if they did not obtain

         20  insurance information from patients while they are

         21  in the ambulance. Do you have that policy?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FITZPATRICK: (Not

         23  identified for the record.) Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Why?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FITZPATRICK: It
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          2  doesn't relate to strictly insurance information.

          3  There is a requirement that every paramedic and EMT

          4  supply documentation of each event, and failure to

          5  fill out that form completely and accurately has a

          6  big impact on the system in general. So, it doesn't

          7  just relate to insurance or billing, it relates to

          8  the data that we capture, relates to the patient's

          9  condition at the time of arrival, blood pressure,

         10  things like that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: So, in addition,

         12  the name, address, date of birth, number of nearest

         13  kin is the question do you have insurance, if you

         14  do, what type, and et cetera.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FITZPATRICK: And

         16  in cases where information is missing, we would

         17  admonish the employee to do it more efficiently in

         18  the future, and if it continues to be a problem,

         19  disciplining could be implemented.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: And is that

         21  information transmitted to the emergency room or the

         22  admitting room?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FITZPATRICK: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: When that patient

         25  is admitted, whether a public or a private hospital?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FITZPATRICK: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: I used to be an

          4  ATI very early into my career and that was the job I

          5  did, get that information for billing purposes.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FITZPATRICK: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Although you have

          8  significantly reduced your response time since the

          9  merger, the question then do you feel that the

         10  survival rate of cardiac arrest patients have been

         11  positively impacted? By that I mean, and Doctor, you

         12  know it takes approximately four minutes when you

         13  hit the cardiac arrest status before you are gone

         14  from this land, and our response time is roughly six

         15  minutes.

         16                 Have we been successful in getting

         17  closer to the four-minute point?

         18                 DR. GIORDANO: I think that number

         19  continues to come down as the operational

         20  improvements are made to the system.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Do we feel that

         22  is attainable? Is that a viable goal, to be able to

         23  reach a cardiac arrest patient in under six minutes?

         24                 MR. McCRACKEN: (Not identified for

         25  the record.) If you refer to page 22 you will see
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          2  segment one which is our cardiac arrest call type,

          3  as Dr. Giordano explained earlier. The most serious

          4  call type we have in the system.

          5                 You will see for the month of April,

          6  our combined response time, the engine company, the

          7  CFR-D company and the ambulance combined has

          8  responded to cardiac arrest choke victims in four

          9  minutes and 28 seconds, which is 84 percent of the

         10  total call type that enters the system for the month

         11  of April. You will see it on page 22.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Let me commend

         13  you for that, but point out, of course, that only

         14  the ALS Unit can administer medications; is that

         15  accurate?

         16                 MR. McCRACKEN: As Dr. G described

         17  earlier, it is important to have early intervention,

         18  opening the airway and defibrillating the patient,

         19  and perceiving that would be the ALS unit.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Councilman Oddo.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Chairman.

         23                 Mr. Commissioner, good afternoon.

         24                 If I may, I would like to follow up

         25  sort of the line of questioning that Council Member
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          2  McCaffrey had started.

          3                 As you know, Staten Island is the

          4  home of many civil servants and firefighters, so I

          5  have family members and friends who are on the job,

          6  and anecdotally at least, I am familiar with some of

          7  the stories about some of the tensions between

          8  firefighters and EMS workers, and I know that it is

          9  sort of a clash of cultures, if you will.

         10                 I am wondering how the every day

         11  relationship between those two individuals is today

         12  and has it improved? Are there still obvious

         13  tensions or has it approved?

         14                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: It has

         15  definitely improved. I think that when we talked

         16  about the merger in the early stages and the early

         17  time after we did merge, that many of the EMTs

         18  thought that the firefighters or the firefighters

         19  union or the City was looking to take away their

         20  job. I don't think anybody believes that anymore.

         21  And I also believe that on the fire side there were

         22  some people that did not appreciate how difficult

         23  the EMT's job was and how skilled that they were.

         24                 I believe that that has now, both

         25  sides have realized that working together is
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          2  definitely a benefit for all of its citizens and for

          3  themselves also.

          4                 We get an isolated incident of one

          5  person who is upset with the other person, you know,

          6  he knows it all and it could be on other side. But

          7  they are isolated and I think that that part of the

          8  working together has improved greatly.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Could you

         10  explain to me what the protocol is at -- you know,

         11  you get a job and there is the lieutenant from the

         12  Fire Department there but there is an officer from

         13  the EMS, who ranks above whom?

         14                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Sure. You get

         15  a car accident on the main thoroughfare and the

         16  person has got medical problems, the CFR-D engine is

         17  the first one to arrive. There are a couple of CFR-D

         18  firefighters inside the car, and the lieutenant is

         19  in charge.

         20                 The EMTs arrive, and the EMTs are now

         21  in charge of the medical portion of that operation.

         22  The lieutenant is in charge of maintaining the

         23  security of the area and anything like that, but the

         24  EMTs are in charge. They are a higher medical

         25  authority over the two CFR-D guys that are in the
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          2  car.

          3                 The paramedics arrive and they are

          4  now in charge over the EMT, so it is a higher

          5  progression.

          6                 The lieutenant in EMS will come, he

          7  will not have the medical authority to change what

          8  those two paramedics are doing inside the car, but

          9  he would have the supervisory capability to be in

         10  charge of those EMTs.

         11                 So, it is a progression. We have had

         12  incidents over the three years where it has become

         13  confused and muddled and we have had complaints from

         14  both sides, but it really is down to a minimum now

         15  and I think that we have started drilling together,

         16  working together, bringing the EMTs and paramedics

         17  to fire drills and trying to -- I think as the

         18  firefighters got more education in the medical end,

         19  they started to appreciate how good the EMTs and

         20  paramedics were.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: In your

         22  testimony you referred to the promotional

         23  opportunities that EMS command personnel have to

         24  join uniform ranks of NYFD; could you just give us

         25  some numbers, if you have them, in terms of the
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          2  overall attrition rate, a turnover rate at EMS, and

          3  then I guess that leaves into the question of

          4  overtime. And how many individuals are we losing

          5  each year, and where are they going? Are they going

          6  to the Fire Department? Are they going to private --

          7                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: We haven't

          8  had any yet come over to the fire side.

          9                 We had a firefighters' exam recently

         10  where several hundred took that exam and I think

         11  some of them are interested in coming over.

         12                 Some people don't think that is a

         13  promotional opportunity, other people do. Some of

         14  the promotional opportunities are advancement

         15  opportunities did disappear when we merged. There

         16  were programs for physical respiratory specialists,

         17  nurses and physicians assistants, that about 25

         18  people from EMS used to participate in over the

         19  course of the year, they did disappear. But we have

         20  continued other opportunities, as far as promotional

         21  exams, lieutenants and captains, and the promotional

         22  exam to firefighters. We have our firefighter exams

         23  so seldom, we just had one recently. Several

         24  hundred, like I said, did take it, and they will

         25  have the opportunity to come over.
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          2                 The attrition rate is much higher on

          3  the EMS side than it is on the fire. I will get you

          4  the number. Andy will give you the number.

          5                 MR. McCRACKEN: Over the last six

          6  months, when we talk about attrition, there are

          7  certain categories: Retirement, resignation,

          8  termination or death, unfortunately. We do lose

          9  people to the privates and we lose them to other

         10  industry that is certainly paying more than EMS.

         11  Over the last six months we have lost 58 EMTs, 17

         12  paramedics, eight lieutenants, two captains, for a

         13  total of 85. However, this is less than before the

         14  merger, but we are still losing people.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Lastly, Mr.

         16  Chairman, we have a hearing coming up on Monday in

         17  the Health Committee about, one of the bills on is a

         18  piece of legislation I have draft about external,

         19  automatic external defibrillators, so I have an

         20  interest in, you mentioned the Lifepak, which is a

         21  semi-automatic, but can you just give me a price or

         22  how expensive you have found them to be, and just

         23  your experience about using that particular product,

         24  in terms of maintenance and how effective they have

         25  been.
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          2                 DR. GIORDANO: Basically they allow,

          3  the Lifepak 12s allow a lot more to be done to the

          4  patient. We can monitor their heart rhythm with it,

          5  we can provide an EKG, take an EKG for the patient,

          6  we can pace the patient who is not responding to

          7  medical therapy, if they have a very, very slow

          8  heart rate, we can bring the heart rate up, so there

          9  is a significant -- they manually operate a

         10  defibrillator, it is significantly more advanced and

         11  that is why it is in the hands of the paramedic who

         12  has the extensive training to utilize that medical

         13  tool.

         14                 Cost-wise, I think it was in the

         15  area, I am not positive but in the area of, I want

         16  to say between $15,000 and $20,000 for that

         17  instrument.

         18                 The semi-automatic defibrillators,

         19  they run in the area of about 3,000 or so.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: We have been

         22  joined by Council Member Michels from the Borough of

         23  Manhattan.

         24                 Commissioner, let's look at your

         25  fleet, the EMS fleet. You are made up of a number of
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          2  City buses I guess you call them and private

          3  ambulances; could you give me the percentages for

          4  each, what percentage of your fleet is now made up

          5  of private hospital vehicles, as opposed to New York

          6  City vehicles?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FITZPATRICK:

          8  Voluntary hospitals comprise about 20 percent of the

          9  system.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Twenty-five

         11  percent.

         12                 And I understand that that will be

         13  growing as we go along, that there is an impetus

         14  toward allowing additional voluntary hospitals into

         15  the EMS service; is that correct?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FITZPATRICK: It

         17  is possible if more voluntary hospitals choose to

         18  participate, not all of them do.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: What is your

         20  protocol for allowing private hospitals to operate

         21  within the 911 system?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FITZPATRICK: The

         23  voluntary hospitals have to comply with the EMS

         24  operating guides and procedures as if it were the

         25  City ambulances. Once it comes into the system it is
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          2  as if temporarily for that period of time we would

          3  own it.

          4                 They need an operating certificate

          5  from the Department of Health. It has to be an

          6  approved ambulance service.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: And let me ask

          8  you this question in the form of a scenario so we

          9  can understand what we are possibly dealing with.

         10                 You had indicated that distance, in

         11  terms of protocol for where a bus will take a

         12  patient, distance, patient preference, medical care,

         13  medical needs.

         14                 DR. GIORDANO: Medical need first,

         15  right.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay. So, if I am

         17  a person who falls out in the street at 138th Street

         18  and Seventh Avenue, I have health insurance and I am

         19  lucid enough to say I want to go to Columbia

         20  Presbyterian, where would you take me?

         21                 DR. GIORDANO: If that is a patient's

         22  request at that point and the patient is medically

         23  stable, the airway is fine, and if it is within ten

         24  minutes of the site where they are, health insurance

         25  does not have anything to do with it. If they are
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          2  within ten minutes of the site, then we will try and

          3  honor the patient's request.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay, so if I am

          5  the same patient and I don't have insurance, or I

          6  may have a Medicaid card, and I fall out in the same

          7  condition, and I say I want to go to Columbia

          8  Presbyterian, will I go to Columbia Presbyterian?

          9                 DR. GIORDANO: Absolutely. It is a 911

         10  designated, ambulance designation.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: I know. Thank you

         12  very much.

         13                 Any other questions?

         14                 Commissioner, I want to thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I have a

         16  question.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Oh, okay.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: I am sorry, I

         19  was delayed at a hearing.

         20                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Time ran out,

         21  Stanley.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: It may have

         23  been covered, if not, shut me up; and that is, how

         24  are we coming with the locations of the places to

         25  put the ambulances?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: We are coming

          3  but we are coming like a snail.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: What are the

          5  main difficulties? I know they are now going to put

          6  one right near Riverside Drive on 150 --

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FITZPATRICK:

          8  158th Street Riverside Drive.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes. You are

         10  positively going to put one there?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FITZPATRICK: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Just by way

         13  of advisory, that is a heavy residential area. And

         14  it is linked to the West Side Highway and

         15  everything, is there any way when you say when you

         16  come out in the middle of the night, not to come

         17  with your ambulances, your sirens?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FITZPATRICK: I

         19  think the big difference is between the previous

         20  program that we had established and the current one,

         21  is that the ambulances won't respond from that

         22  location, they will just use it as a support

         23  facility.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes, but I

         25  just hope at night they will be sort of quiet.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FITZPATRICK: Yes.

          3                 DR. GIORDANO: We don't want to wake

          4  you up.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FITZPATRICK:

          6  Nobody should be responding from there, unless they

          7  just coincidently --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: That happens

          9  to be a very good site.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FITZPATRICK: Yes.

         11  It is very difficult, that is what is slowing us

         12  down, it is very difficult in this economic climate

         13  to be able to acquire property at all.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: That is

         15  City-owned property, isn't it?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FITZPATRICK: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: It makes it

         18  easier to acquire.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FITZPATRICK:

         20  Absolutely.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Okay, good

         22  luck. Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: One more thing,

         24  Commissioner, then I promise to let you go.

         25                 On page 22 of your progress report,
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          2  just clear this up for me, under response time,

          3  where you have ambulance, I guess under six minutes

          4  ambulance only, is that an ALS or a BLS unit, or

          5  either?

          6                 MR. McCRACKEN: Are you referring to

          7  segment one, the second line where it says -- oh, I

          8  am sorry the first line --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Where it says,

         10  where you say ambulance, all four of the categories.

         11                 MR. McCRACKEN: Okay, the first one,

         12  it says segment one.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: I am sorry?

         14                 MR. McCRACKEN: It says segment one,

         15  that means ambulance only, that means BLS or ALS.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: So it is either?

         17                 MR. McCRACKEN: That is correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay.

         19                 MR. McCRACKEN: Preferably ALS, if

         20  they are available.

         21                 The second one, it says segment one

         22  response time, it says ambulance and CFR-D.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Yes.

         24                 MR. McCRACKEN: That is either or.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: That is either
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          2  also.

          3                 MR. McCRACKEN: Right.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay.

          5                 MR. McCRACKEN: Segment one through

          6  three, the same, ambulance means BLS or ALS for

          7  life-threatening emergencies.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay.

          9                 MR. McCRACKEN: And the last category

         10  includes the CFR-D company.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Includes?

         12                 MR. McCRACKEN: Includes the CFR-D

         13  company.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay. Thank you.

         15                 MR. McCRACKEN: I hope that clears it

         16  up?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: That clears it

         18  up.

         19                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Thank you

         20  very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Commissioner, I

         22  want to thank you very much for your cooperation,

         23  and you have done well and I know that you still

         24  have some problems there, but I think working

         25  together we should be able to come to some
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          2  resolution.

          3                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Take care.

          5                 Greater New York Hospital

          6  Association, Doris Varlese.

          7                 MS. VARLESE: Good afternoon, I am

          8  Doris R. Varlese, Assistant General Counsel of the

          9  Greater New York Hospital Association.

         10                 I just wanted to start off by saying,

         11  it is always a pleasure coming back here after

         12  having served for three years as Counsel to the City

         13  Council Health Committee.

         14                 I thank you for the opportunity to

         15  appear before you today. Greater New York Hospital

         16  Association represents the interest of 175 hospitals

         17  and continuing care facilities in surrounding

         18  communities. All of Greater New York's members are

         19  either not-for-profit, charitable organizations, or

         20  publicly sponsored institutions like the New York

         21  City Health and Hospitals Corporation that together

         22  serve large special needs populations, including a

         23  high number of Medicaid and indigent patients and

         24  individuals suffering from AIDS, tuberculosis,

         25  substance abuse problems and mental health problems.
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          2                 While many Greater New York members

          3  provide state-of-the-art tertiary care, they often

          4  act as the sole source of health care for the

          5  patients in their service areas.

          6                 My comments today will be brief, and

          7  will focus on the importance of the partnership that

          8  has been forged between the hospitals and the Fire

          9  Department of New York City and the valuable roles

         10  played by hospitals in the New York City emergency

         11  Medical Service system.

         12                 In the three years since the Fire

         13  Department has assumed responsibility for the

         14  operations of EMS, Greater New York and the

         15  hospitals that operate ambulances in the EMS system

         16  have forged a valuable and a sensible partnership,

         17  one that we believe benefits the EMS system and the

         18  citizens of New York City.

         19                 Greater New York has great respect

         20  for the leadership that has been demonstrated by

         21  Commissioner Thomas Von Essen, Chief Robert A.

         22  McCracken and Lorraine Giordano, M.D.

         23                 Greater New York members are proud to

         24  be a part of the City's EMS system, which over the

         25  past several months has been experiencing dramatic
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          2  increases in EMS response time.

          3                 With the transfer of EMS from the New

          4  York City Health and Hospitals Corporation to the

          5  Fire Department came a period of uncertainty as to

          6  what those changes would mean for the participants

          7  in the system and I am pleased to say that the

          8  hospital participants feel that the Fire Department

          9  has recognized the valuable role that the hospitals

         10  play in the EMS system.

         11                 The Fire Department and Greater New

         12  York have developed a high level working group that

         13  meets every few months with Chief McCracken to

         14  review EMS operations issues and allows input from

         15  the hospitals regarding the system and the care that

         16  the EMS system delivers.

         17                 During those meetings the Fire

         18  Department often provides us with details regarding

         19  upcoming initiatives and solicits our input. Greater

         20  New York and its participating members now feel that

         21  we have established a meaningful mechanism for

         22  raising questions, providing input and resolving

         23  issues in a system within which we are key

         24  components.

         25                 In addition, as in the past, EMS
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          2  management meets with the hospitals' pre-hospital

          3  care directors on a quarterly basis to discuss the

          4  EMS operational issues and future plans.

          5                 We are appreciative of the process

          6  that the Fire Department has put into place and the

          7  recognition that has come from the top of the

          8  Department as to the valuable role played by the

          9  hospital participants.

         10                 We urge its continuation and support

         11  from the City Council.

         12                 Hospitals have been a valuable part

         13  of New York City's EMS system for decades. While the

         14  City, through several City agencies, has managed and

         15  operated the system for many years, hospitals have

         16  played a major role within the system, they are the

         17  provision and operation of many of the system's

         18  ambulances.

         19                 Currently 18 Greater New York member

         20  hospitals operate ambulances within the EMS system.

         21                 According to the Fire Department's

         22  statistics, these hospitals operate an average of

         23  141 tours of duty daily within the New York City EMS

         24  system.

         25                 Greater New York notes that of these
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          2  141 ambulances tours operated by hospitals,

          3  approximately two-thirds of them are advanced life

          4  support or paramedic tours as contracted with basic

          5  life support or BLS or EMT tours.

          6                 Hospitals operating ambulances within

          7  the EMS system take great pride in the services that

          8  they provide to their communities. Indeed, hospitals

          9  view the operation of an ambulance as an important

         10  community service and a critical part of the

         11  continuum of care that they provide in today's

         12  delivery system.

         13                 Moreover, Greater New York believes

         14  that its members, as providers of medical care,

         15  offer high quality pre-hospital care services and

         16  that their response times and in-service times are

         17  to be commended.

         18                 Hospitals that operate ambulances

         19  within the EMS system also point to the value of the

         20  interface between their own ambulance service and

         21  the services the hospitals provide in their own

         22  emergency departments and throughout their

         23  institutions.

         24                 This relationship allows for

         25  continuing medical education and the availability of
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          2  the full array of quality management services and

          3  state-of-the-art medical knowledge that is available

          4  in the institution itself. It also fosters a better

          5  understanding of the health care needs of the

          6  communities, within the ambulance's primary area of

          7  response.

          8                 The foregoing positive features hold

          9  true, even though many of the transports are to

         10  hospitals other than the sponsoring institution as

         11  dictated by the rules that govern the transport of

         12  patients within the EMS system, and that is the

         13  ten-minute rule that was discussed earlier.

         14                 Greater New York would like to take a

         15  moment to comment on the cost of the services that

         16  its members provide to the EMS system.

         17                 Today Greater New York members

         18  provide their ambulance services to the EMS system

         19  in the City of New York without any cost to the

         20  City. Historically the City had paid hospitals the

         21  total of approximately $1 million per year for all

         22  of the ambulance tours operated by hospitals within

         23  the EMS system.

         24                 Currently, however, this City pays no

         25  remuneration for the services that the hospitals
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          2  provide to the system.

          3                 Greater New York members estimate

          4  that the cost to them of operating an ambulance runs

          5  upwards of $350,000 per year for a BLS unit and

          6  $450,000 per year for an ALS unit. These figures do

          7  not include the capital cost of acquiring the

          8  ambulance, which can reach $120,000. In addition,

          9  given that the hospitals house their ambulances,

         10  they also have assumed the cost of siting the

         11  vehicles.

         12                 Greater New York recognizes that

         13  there is often some form of reimbursement for the

         14  services they provide, i.e., insurance coverage for

         15  the ambulance services, but rarely does the revenue

         16  from such sources cover the cost of operating the

         17  ambulance, let alone its capital and other related

         18  costs.

         19                 Greater New York also appreciates

         20  that the transport of a patient can lead to a

         21  patient admission and therefore other forms of

         22  revenue.

         23                 However, as noted previously, rules

         24  governing the transport of patients dictate where

         25  patients are to be taken, and thus many patients are
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          2  not brought back to the transporting hospital's own

          3  institution. Therefore, patients will be delivered

          4  to the system-prescribed hospital, regardless of

          5  whether the transport is by a City-run tour, or a

          6  hospital-run tour.

          7                 In summary then, the hospitals that

          8  operate ambulances within the EMS system provide a

          9  valuable, high quality medical and transport service

         10  to the City of New York at no cost to the City.

         11                 We believe that this role should not

         12  be discounted in any way and should be maintained as

         13  an essential community-based service. It is as

         14  important to the health care delivery system as the

         15  institutions themselves.

         16                 In enumerating the contributions of

         17  hospitals to the EMS system, I do not want to

         18  overlook the value added by any of our members that

         19  do not operate ambulances, but that nevertheless

         20  offer important services to this City and the EMS

         21  system.

         22                 Through this service as hospitals

         23  that receive patients in their emergency departments

         24  from the 911 system, almost 60 Greater New York

         25  members interface with the EMS command of the Fire
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          2  Department on a daily basis.

          3                 I also wanted to mention this was

          4  discussed earlier in terms of the New York City Fire

          5  Department and the EMS system, working with the New

          6  York City Mayor's Office of Emergency Management

          7  regarding task forces and planning and drills for

          8  chemical and biological incidents, Greater New York,

          9  as representative of all hospitals, including those

         10  that operate hospitals in the EMS system, work very

         11  closely with the Mayor's Office of Emergency

         12  Management on planning on those type issues.

         13                 In recent years there have been

         14  discussions regarding the development of a formal

         15  contract governing participation within the system.

         16  I know, however, that Greater New York members have

         17  been participating within the system for several

         18  decades without a formal contract. Instead, by

         19  participating, Greater New York members agreed to

         20  abide by the rules set forth in the EMS operating

         21  guide and operations orders, although, as indicated

         22  earlier, they do not receive payment for their

         23  services from the Fire Department or the City.

         24                 Similarly, discussions concerning

         25  more formal contracting arrangements do not
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          2  contemplate payment full participation.

          3                 I thank you again for the opportunity

          4  to appear before you today, and hope that I have

          5  adequately conveyed the roles and value of the

          6  hospitals participating in the EMS system.

          7                 I also want to emphasize once again

          8  the appreciation that we have for the leadership

          9  demonstrated by Commissioner Von Essen, Chief

         10  McCracken and Dr. Giordano during what has proven to

         11  be another successful year in the history of the New

         12  York City EMS.

         13                 As always, greater New York stands

         14  ready to work with the City Council and the

         15  Administration to improve the services available to

         16  all citizens of and visitors to the City of New

         17  York, and now I would be happy to answer any

         18  questions that you may have for me.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you very

         20  much for your testimony. I just have one concern,

         21  and I guess I heard you and the Fire Department say

         22  the same thing as it relates to the runs to

         23  municipal hospitals, but on the other side we have

         24  doctors that have given information to the media

         25  that indicate that runs sometimes being given a
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          2  choice to upscale neighborhoods or that the private

          3  ambulances are taking lucrative emergency cases to

          4  private hospitals and the homeless or the uninsured

          5  are being steered to City hospitals. And I believe

          6  what you say and I believe what the Department says,

          7  but we have to consider also what comes out in the

          8  media and there are several physicians from the

          9  health and hospital corporation that have alleged

         10  this; can you clear it up for me?

         11                 MS. VARLESE: Sure. And it actually

         12  might help if I go through some of the regulatory

         13  apparatus that governs a lot of these issues.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: I would

         15  appreciate that.

         16                 MS. VARLESE: First I wanted to state

         17  that I tried to make this clear earlier, but in

         18  addition to voluntary, or the commonly used term, as

         19  private hospitals, HHC is also a member of the

         20  Greater New York Hospital Association. So, we

         21  represent voluntary, as well as private hospitals,

         22  and so HHC is a member of our Association as well.

         23                 With respect to the siting of

         24  ambulances and protocols, I will quickly go through

         25  some of the regulatory issues.
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          2                 In order to operate ambulance

          3  services, hospitals must get a certificate of need

          4  from the New York State Department of Health, and

          5  that is a certificate saying that a hospital has the

          6  right to operate an ambulance services.

          7                 Hospitals need certificates of need

          8  for all other services -- I shouldn't say all other

          9  services, most other major services that they

         10  provide, and they have to go through a process of

         11  filling out an application, there is an opportunity

         12  for public comment, there is a whole regulatory

         13  process governing the certificate of need.

         14                 In addition, what is different on the

         15  ambulance side is, the certificate of need process

         16  allows for local participation and body is called

         17  the New York City Regional Emergency Services

         18  Medical Council, which is a statutory body nicknamed

         19  REMSCO, and the Regional Emergency Medical Advisory

         20  Committee, a statutory body nicknamed REMAC have

         21  roles in the certificate of need process. There is

         22  both a state and a local process with respect to the

         23  certificate of need.

         24                 Now, once a hospital has a

         25  certificate of need, it is specific in terms of
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          2  where the hospital is permitted to run that

          3  ambulance. So they could be, the CON could say a

          4  hospital could operate an ambulance in a certain

          5  police precinct, which is a small neighborhood, or

          6  in several police precincts or in the whole borough,

          7  or in some cases within the five boroughs of New

          8  York City. And that dictates where a hospital can be

          9  sited.

         10                 Now, sometimes ambulances have to go

         11  out of areas for other reasons, but generally the

         12  CON governs which hospital ambulance is sited.

         13                 So, in terms of hospital ambulances

         14  being located in so-called upscale neighborhoods,

         15  versus other ambulances -- other neighborhoods, the

         16  CON process dictates that.

         17                 I would also like to point out, I

         18  could provide you with a list of the 18 hospitals in

         19  our membership that operate ambulances, but it is

         20  not true to say that hospitals only operate

         21  ambulances in so-called upscale neighborhoods; for

         22  example, New York Presbyterian Hospital has units in

         23  Washington Heights, there are units operated out of

         24  New York Flushing Hospital, Jamaica operates units

         25  in its area, Our Lady of Mercy Medical Center in the
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          2  Bronx operates units up there, so there is a

          3  misperception that voluntary ambulances are only

          4  running in upscale neighborhoods.

          5                 In addition, with respect to

          6  ambulance destinations, as the Fire Department

          7  mentioned earlier, there is the so-called ten-minute

          8  rule which has been in effect for many, many years,

          9  and that is that the determination of where a

         10  patient is taken is based on a variety of issues.

         11  Generally the patient should be taken to the closest

         12  hospital, or the closest specialty referral center.

         13  For example, if the patient is a burn patient, they

         14  will go to one of the burn centers.

         15                 However if a hospital chooses, and

         16  the -- I am sorry, if the patient chooses and the

         17  patient's medical condition permits it, the patient

         18  may request to be taken to a certain hospital and

         19  the ten-minute rule says, if the medical condition

         20  permits it, the patient can be taken to another

         21  hospital, as long as it is within ten minutes from

         22  the closest hospital.

         23                 So, for example, if I am a patient, I

         24  get injured on the street, the closest hospital is

         25  ten minutes away. I request to be taken to a
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          2  different hospital and my medical condition permits

          3  it, I can be taken to a hospital within 12 minutes

          4  away, and that is the ten-minute rule.

          5                 The other regulatory apparatus I

          6  would like to mention is the federal law called,

          7  commonly called EMTALA, which is the Emergency

          8  Treatment and Active Labor Act, and that governs the

          9  federal statute which says hospitals, and it also

         10  applies to hospital ambulance services, cannot

         11  discriminate on patients based on their ability to

         12  pay. And it is quite clear that this applies to

         13  hospital ambulance services, as well as physical

         14  hospital building.

         15                 Basically hospitals must treat anyone

         16  who enters their door or their ambulance, regardless

         17  of their ability to pay, and there are very

         18  stringent criteria, that have to do with triage of

         19  patients and screening of patients that dictate when

         20  insurance information can be obtained from a

         21  patient.

         22                 We are very, very concerned with

         23  compliance with this law. We have had a number of

         24  briefings and a number -- and they have included

         25  officials from the federal Health Care Finance
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          2  Administration to explain to our members the

          3  requirements, and the federal Health Care Financing

          4  Administration is a very, very powerful agency

          5  because if hospitals fail to comply with EMTALA

          6  requirements, hospitals can eventually, after a

          7  certain process is followed, have their Medicare and

          8  Medicaid funds cut off, and would not be able to

          9  take Medicaid and Medicare patients, which that is a

         10  very significant punishment since hospitals rely

         11  very, very heavily on Medicare and Medicaid funding

         12  streams.

         13                 I hope that I have answered your

         14  questions, but if you have any further questions on

         15  any of these issues --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: For the most part

         17  you have, the only two little wrinkles I have is the

         18  911 regulation has additional regulations that

         19  impact as to where a patient should be taken; isn't

         20  that so?

         21                 MS. VARLESE: You mean the ten-minute

         22  rule?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: It might be the

         24  ten --

         25                 MS. VARLESE: Okay, that is a 911
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          2  regulation -- not a regulation, a protocol, and all

          3  ambulance crews have to follow that voluntary or

          4  municipal.

          5                 In addition there are other 911

          6  standards with respect to specialty referral centers

          7  and which patients go where. For example, trauma,

          8  burn, hyperbaric, and those are all governed by the

          9  local 911 rule.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay. And my last

         11  area of concern, you mentioned in your testimony

         12  that the City of New York no longer has to pay the

         13  voluntary a million dollars a year for participating

         14  in the system and that the voluntaries are picking

         15  up their own housing for their buses, and being

         16  somewhat cynical, what is the quid pro quo?

         17                 MS. VARLESE: Well, you are asking why

         18  would they do it if they don't get paid?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Absolutely.

         20                 MR. VARLESE: Basically. Okay, the

         21  reason they do it is because they feel that they are

         22  providing an essential community benefit. Hospitals

         23  mission is, I mean voluntary hospitals are 501C3,

         24  charitable, tax exempt organizations and missions

         25  are to serve patients. Hospitals do a variety of
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          2  things that aren't necessarily just in the walls of

          3  their building, and this is one of them. They do a

          4  lot of community education, and this is a way that

          5  they can serve their communities.

          6                 You know, as I indicated when I

          7  described the CON process, generally hospitals

          8  operate in the ambulance area in which the hospital

          9  is located, so this is another way to provide a

         10  community service. People in the community will see

         11  hospital ambulances riding around and you know

         12  hospitals are pleased that they are able to serve

         13  their community in such a manner. It is no different

         14  from doing other things, like community education,

         15  and other sort of outreach type services that

         16  hospitals routinely provide.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Are all the

         18  hospitals that provide the voluntary ambulance

         19  service not-for-profit corporations?

         20                 MS. VARLESE: Absolutely. Absolutely.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Any other

         22  questions?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Council Member

         25  Michels.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes.

          3                 MS. VARLESE: Would you like a list of

          4  those, by the way?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Yes.

          6                 MS. VARLESE: Okay, I will provide

          7  that for you.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: It is always

          9  good to see you.

         10                 MS. VARLESE: Thank you.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I remember

         12  the wonderful service you gave to us and I am sure

         13  you are giving likewise service to the Greater

         14  Hospital Association.

         15                 MS. VARLESE: Thank you.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: However --

         17                 MS. VARLESE: I wasn't going to get

         18  off that easy today, huh?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: We are being

         20  told that private ambulances is making up between a

         21  fourth and a third of the EMS system fleet.

         22                 MS. VARLESE: It is closer to a

         23  fourth. It is 141 tours and I believe there are --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And which way

         25  is it going? Is there going to be more or less in
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          2  the future?

          3                 MS. VARLESE: Well, as someone who is

          4  an advocate for our hospitals, I would hope that if

          5  hospitals are interested in providing more, that it

          6  would be more, and --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Well, that is

          8  a good answer, that is a proper answer, do you think

          9  that the ambulance drivers of those ambulances who

         10  are private, who are from private hospitals, are

         11  also advocates for their hospitals?

         12                 MS. VARLESE: Well, they are employed

         13  by their hospitals, so one would hope.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes. And as

         15  advocates, they would probably tend to take the

         16  patients to the hospitals from which their ambulance

         17  is for; isn't that right?

         18                 MS. VARLESE: If it is the closest

         19  hospital.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Well, it is,

         21  but you never know. Nobody has a measuring stick to

         22  tell where it is, but when in doubt take them to

         23  their hospital, right?

         24                 MS. VARLESE: No. I mean, as I

         25  indicated, I laid out very clearly the ten-minute
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          2  rule and --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I understand.

          4                 MS. VARLESE: Okay.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I know about

          6  all of the rules. The rules are good. The question

          7  is, is there adherence to the rules?

          8                 MS. VARLESE: Okay, I understand. But

          9  I just wanted to say, you made a comment and I don't

         10  remember the exact word that was used about sort of

         11  no one watching, I mean it is very, very clearly

         12  documented, the crew has to complete an ambulance

         13  call report, which has, you know, the patient's

         14  vital statistics and the patient's condition and

         15  everything, as well as where the patient was picked

         16  up and where the patient went.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: When is the

         18  last time anyone reviewed --

         19                 MS. VARLESE: You probably should have

         20  asked somebody from the Fire Department that, but

         21  Lorraine might be able to -- Dr. Giordano is saying

         22  they review it daily.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  You see,

         24  what I don't understand is, if that all is being

         25  true, how come between July and December the
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          2  ambulance transport of the Emergency Medical Service

          3  system plummeted 49 percent in Harlem Hospital, 43

          4  percent in Queens Hospital Center, 33 percent in

          5  Queens Hospital, 30 percent at Bellevue, and I

          6  understand, I don't know if that percentage holds

          7  true for the increase in the number of transports to

          8  the private hospitals and increased.

          9                 MS. VARLESE: Okay, I am very

         10  interested in those statistics. I have never seen

         11  them, I have never heard those numbers, and I don't

         12  know what the source is.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: It is

         14  something to look into, of course.

         15                 MS. VARLESE: Yes. I mean --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: As we have

         17  been saying for a long time, figures don't lie, but

         18  liars figure. So we have to make sure the statistics

         19  are accurate.

         20                 MS. VARLESE: In any event, I don't

         21  know where those statistics came from and as you --

         22  well, I am not sure if you were here from this part,

         23  but earlier Mr. McCracken talked about a proportion

         24  of patients going to HHC facilities versus voluntary

         25  facilities, and he gave figures of it being
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          2  somewhere around 35 percent of patients went to HHC

          3  facilities last year and approximately 34 percent

          4  are going to HHC facilities this year.

          5                 The other thing to keep in mind is,

          6  it is very beneficial to the system for more

          7  hospitals to join the 911 system because then they

          8  results in decreased response time, right? If you

          9  have more places to take --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Absolutely.

         11  We are not talking about response time.

         12                 MS. VARLESE: Okay.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: We are

         14  talking about the fact that statistics would seem to

         15  indicate that something is going on here.

         16                 MS. VARLESE: Again, I have not seen

         17  the statistics and I think the Fire Department,

         18  although I can't speak to them, based on Chief

         19  McCracken's 34, 35 percent discussion earlier, I

         20  think the Fire Department would take issue with

         21  those.

         22                 I haven't seen them. I would be happy

         23  to --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: All I did was

         25  raise the question --

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            87

          1  COMMITTEE ON FIRE AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES

          2                 MS. VARLESE: Okay. I would be happy

          3  to review them.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: It seems to

          5  me there is something here, and where there is

          6  smoke, there is generally some fire. And you know,

          7  the more you have private ambulance services taking

          8  over EMS -- and I don't blame them, they are being

          9  paid for it, it is the cost to the hospital, and the

         10  hospitals say, look, you know, when in doubt bring

         11  them to my place.

         12                 And it is only logical it is

         13  something that is going to happen and to say it is

         14  not going to happen is illogical.

         15                 MS. VARLESE: Again, there are

         16  protocols that govern all of this and I take issue

         17  with those statistics.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Protocols can

         19  be there, but what is generally going to happen is

         20  the thing that is logical to happen. I mean, you

         21  have protocols all over the place.

         22                 MS. VARLESE: I don't agree with the

         23  scenario you propose.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: If these

         25  statistics are true, then there is a problem.
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          2                 But it just seems to me you are going

          3  to have private ambulances paid for by private

          4  hospitals, and I know they are voluntary hospitals,

          5  I understand that, other than HHC hospitals, they

          6  are going to try to take those patients to their

          7  hospitals.

          8                 MS. VARLESE: I guess I don't agree

          9  with, well when it is posed that way I can't

         10  necessarily give you a yes or no answer.

         11                 But the other thing I would like to

         12  point out is, the fact that more hospitals have

         13  entered the 911 system, which is a good thing. I

         14  mean, the Fire Department realizes that, the

         15  hospitals realize that --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Cut down on

         17  response time, which is wonderful.

         18                 MS. VARLESE: The other thing is, it

         19  also ends up having an impact on how many patients

         20  hospitals receive, because if new hospitals join the

         21  system in a certain neighborhood --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: That was

         23  explained in the statistics.

         24                 MS. VARLESE: Okay.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: The last time
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          2  I looked, we haven't had too many new hospitals

          3  joining the system. All we have been talking about

          4  is hospitals closing.

          5                 MS. VARLESE: No, that is not accurate

          6  actually. In the past several years a few hospitals

          7  have joined this system every year.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I am not

          9  talking about joining the system, I am saying open

         10  and closed. You haven't had too many hospitals built

         11  these days.

         12                 MS. VARLESE: Not built, but there are

         13  hospitals, every year a few new hospitals enter the

         14  911 system.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Which is very

         16  good.

         17                 MS. VARLESE: The other thing I would

         18  like to mention is, the increased tours benefits the

         19  system and that results in decreased response time,

         20  so adding voluntary hospital tours results in lower

         21  response times which is a good thing.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Anything

         23  which gives low response time is good.

         24                 MS. VARLESE: Yes, I agree.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Because we
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          2  want to make sure that they not only respond but

          3  they take you to the hospital nearest --

          4                 MS. VARLESE: We do too.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And the

          6  hospital that gives the best service --

          7                 MS. VARLESE: And as I have indicated,

          8  HHC is a member of ours so we are very concerned

          9  that everyone follows the rules.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: You know we

         11  are very concerned about keeping the HHC hospitals

         12  open.

         13                 MS. VARLESE: I am absolutely aware of

         14  that.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And if they

         16  don't have patients, they close.

         17                 MS. VARLESE: I am absolutely aware of

         18  that.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: If they don't

         20  provide services they close.

         21                 MS. VARLESE: That is an issue for any

         22  hospital.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Right.

         24                 MS. VARLESE: I am aware of that.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Nice to see
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          2  you.

          3                 MS. VARLESE: You too.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Councilman Oddo.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: No, Mr.

          6  Chairman, I will defer. Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: There is one more

          8  question I have and then I will let you go.

          9                 MS. VARLESE: Okay.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Last year, you

         11  testified that some member hospitals do not operate

         12  ambulances but they have expressed an interest in

         13  having a station based at their facility. And the

         14  Fire Department has been discussing these plans and

         15  we are awaiting a final decision.

         16                 Do you know what the status of these

         17  proposals are?

         18                 MS. VARLESE: I guess let me do a

         19  little explanation.

         20                 Hospitals that operate to the 911

         21  system, those are considered to be ambulance

         22  stations, for purposes of this discussion.

         23                 What I was saying last year is, some

         24  hospitals that don't operate ambulances wanted

         25  stations or were discussing with the Fire Department
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          2  the possibility of having stations at their

          3  hospital, which would mean that there would be sites

          4  for housing vehicles of the Fire Department and, you

          5  know, lockers and whatever else comprises a

          6  municipal ambulance station. So that is what those

          7  comments were intended to reflect.

          8                 My understanding is, since the Fire

          9  Department took over, a few of the hospitals have

         10  stations based at their facilities. Perhaps Western

         11  Queens Community Hospital. I don't have the report

         12  but I am told it is on page 16 of your report.

         13                 There were also discussions about

         14  opening new ones and there were some legal issues

         15  connected with those, and my understanding is some

         16  of the hospitals that were interested in having

         17  stations opened were told that the Fire Department

         18  had changed its plans and that was an operational

         19  decision made on the part of the Fire Department.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: With reference to

         21  your Association in designating certain hospitals as

         22  say heart attack centers, what is the position, the

         23  policy position?

         24                 MS. VARLESE: Yes, we don't have a

         25  position.
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          2                 Let me start off by saying I am not a

          3  physician, I am an attorney, and so I am not in a

          4  position to discuss medically whether that is a good

          5  thing or not a good thing. I am very familiar with

          6  the New England Journal article that you mentioned

          7  and I expect that it will be a topic of discussion

          8  in months and probably years to come at regional

          9  bodies that we participate in like REMSCO and REMAC

         10  and 911 Ambulance Designation Advisory Committee,

         11  and I defer to medical experts in terms of whether

         12  that is a good thing or not.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: That is the

         14  lawyer's way out.

         15                 MS. VARLESE: I can't help it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you for

         17  coming.

         18                 MS. VARLESE: Thank you so much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you for

         20  your testimony.

         21                 The next witness will be DC 37.

         22                 Please identify yourself for the

         23  record.

         24                 MS. VELEZ: Hi. Good afternoon. My

         25  name is Stephanie Velez and I am the Director of the
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          2  Professional Division of District Council 37. With

          3  me today is Michelle Green, who is the Assistant

          4  Director of our Research Department.

          5                 We are here on behalf of Lee

          6  Saunders, the Administrator of DC 37 and the 125,000

          7  municipal and government-related workers we

          8  represent.

          9                 We thank you, Chairman Warden, for

         10  the opportunity to testify today regarding issues

         11  affecting our members in the Emergency Medical

         12  Services Bureau of the Fire Department of New York.

         13                 At the time of the merger of EMS into

         14  the Fire Department, the City Council and the

         15  Committee on Public Safety were concerned enough

         16  about preserving certain aspects of EMS operations

         17  and about ensuring the highest level of quality in

         18  those operations that a memorandum of understanding

         19  with the City was approved by the City Council in

         20  1996.

         21                 In the three years since the merger,

         22  the number of issues in that MOU have not been

         23  adequately addressed and remain unresolved.

         24                 In particular, the union is concerned

         25  that the increased operations of private emergency
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          2  medical service units, combined with higher than

          3  usual attrition rates, and difficulties in

          4  attracting new employees, are putting the integrity

          5  and the long-term quality of the public EMS system

          6  at risk.

          7                 For individual employees the results

          8  are a higher workload, four hours of work, and

          9  higher levels of stress than ever before.

         10                 DC 37 recommends, and we asked the

         11  City Council to support, as they did in their 1996

         12  MOU, the following proposals to address

         13  long-standing problems with recruitment and

         14  retention.

         15                 First, the establishment of a career

         16  ladder for EMS employees to slow attrition and

         17  render public EMS jobs more competitive and

         18  attractive.

         19                 Secondly, a comprehensive training

         20  program to expand and update workers skills,

         21  including continuing medical training, programs for

         22  EMTs to obtain paramedic certification. There have

         23  been no new paramedic classes in the last three

         24  years.

         25                 Thirdly, development of a
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          2  comprehensive approach to addressing the affects of

          3  job stress, which should become a permanent part of

          4  the EMS Bureau.

          5                 The need for a state-of-the-art

          6  communication center and a viable back-up

          7  communication system is undeniable.

          8                 The City Council must take steps to

          9  ensure that a plan for such a system is developed

         10  and implemented promptly.

         11                 EMS communications currently operates

         12  out of trailers and is slated for transfer to FDNY

         13  dispatch stations which are far from desirable.

         14                 To ensure the highest quality

         15  emergency medical service and responsiveness, the

         16  City Council must address the need for modern

         17  facilities, equipment and trained personnel.

         18                 The union also encourages this

         19  committee to examine the affects of the encroachment

         20  of private and emergency medical services units,

         21  often from hospitals located outside of New York

         22  City, particularly in Nassau County.

         23                 On the quality of health care for our

         24  City residents, both those being transport and those

         25  not, it is critical that we identify the potential
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          2  risk of an understaffed and under-equipped public

          3  EMS system that could result from increased

          4  privatization.

          5                 We know this is the first time that

          6  this Committee has addressed the EMS system, by

          7  means of an oversight hearing, and we look forward

          8  to working with you on these issues in the near

          9  future.

         10                 Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you for

         12  your testimony, and one of the things we want to

         13  look at is a comparison between what we wanted to do

         14  as per the MOU and what has actually been done, for

         15  the purpose of this hearing.

         16                 I do believe a couple of the items

         17  that you cited have been addressed by the Fire

         18  Department. The one that talks about the career

         19  path, I believe Commissioner Von Essen indicated

         20  that has been put in place. That is one step.

         21                 The training program, I heard him

         22  mention something concerning that as well.

         23                 MS. VELEZ: Can we just make one

         24  comment regarding the career path?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Yes. Identify
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          2  yourself, please.

          3                 MS. GREEN: My name is Michelle Green

          4  and I am Assistant Director in the Research

          5  Department at District Council 37, and I was here

          6  and the read the Fire Department's testimony.

          7                 We believe there is still more to be

          8  done in terms of a career path and certainly for our

          9  members in the Fire Department.

         10                 As Commissioner Von Essen said, there

         11  were certain health-related fields that were cut off

         12  in terms of training for our members, such as

         13  physician assistant, some other technician titles,

         14  those no longer exist.

         15                 When we say that there has been a

         16  problem with paramedic training, there are two kinds

         17  of paramedic training that we are aware of in the

         18  Fire Department. One has occurred, one has not

         19  occurred.

         20                 In one case individual EMTs seek

         21  training outside of the Fire Department, they do it

         22  on their own time, and then the Fire Department runs

         23  a limited training program for people who have

         24  already achieved certification as a paramedic to

         25  become paramedics in the Fire Department.
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          2                 What we are speaking about is

          3  training, which you would take an EMT and train him

          4  or her to become a paramedic, and those classes have

          5  ceased. We don't see those classes happening.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you.

          7                 MS. VELEZ: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you for

          9  testifying.

         10                 MS. GREEN: Thank you for having us.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: The next witness,

         12  Local 2507.

         13                 MR. BAHNKEN: Chairman Warden, members

         14  of the Committee, members of the Fire Department and

         15  EMS Administration, my name is Patrick Bahnken, and

         16  I am the President of Local 2507 and representing

         17  the Emergency Medical Technicians and paramedics of

         18  the New York City Fire Department. I thank you for

         19  giving me the opportunity to speak on some of the

         20  issues which in the last three years of this merger

         21  have yet to be resolved.

         22                 Our Chief concern right now is the

         23  exorbitant amounts of forced mandatory overtime that

         24  my members must perform.

         25                 Simply put, we do not have enough
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          2  personnel to run the number of tours required to

          3  achieve our targeted response times, nor are we able

          4  to adequately recruit or retain people to fill our

          5  known vacancies. With the hot summer months upon us,

          6  EMS command will have to fill additional tours to

          7  meet the increased call volume which will only

          8  exacerbate this problem.

          9                 As our members are required to work

         10  more and more mandatory overtime, they become

         11  increasingly demoralized, they are subject to more

         12  illness, injury and emotional burnout.

         13                 This not only causes a negative

         14  impact on their work performance and their personal

         15  lives, but it also creates the need for even more

         16  mandatory overtime, establishing a self-consuming

         17  cycle that is destroying our members.

         18                 Last year the Fire Department's own

         19  figures show that the EMS command lost 9,400 work

         20  days, representing over $2 million in lost wages due

         21  to on-the-job injuries alone.

         22                 It is well documented that EMS

         23  workers face a greater rate of serious injuries,

         24  post traumatic stress disorder, and the associated

         25  and emotional burnout than our counterpart in both
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          2  fire suppression and law enforcement.

          3                 Another issue affecting overtime is

          4  the rate of attrition. Each time another City agency

          5  hires, we lose members. Sadly, the emergency medical

          6  technician at top pay earns only $33,575 per year,

          7  while his or her counterpart in the fire suppression

          8  or Police Department earns a top scale salary of

          9  $49,032.

         10                 We also lose a significant number of

         11  personnel to the private sector, which offers a

         12  starting wage of approximately $8,000 to $10,000

         13  more per year and better working conditions.

         14                 Each year EMS attrition averages over

         15  nine percent. This is the number of job departures

         16  measured against hiring from the date of the merger,

         17  March 17th, '96, through March 17th, 1999.

         18                 This figure represents a steady

         19  outflow of our best and brightest personnel.

         20                 Private hospitals operating in the

         21  EMS 911 system are aggressively recruiting EMTs and

         22  paramedics with a superior pay and benefits package.

         23                 Furthermore, the working conditions

         24  and poor pay and benefits offered has seriously

         25  impacted on the Fire Department's ability to recruit
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          2  personnel.

          3                 The last civil service call-up had

          4  the Department canvassing 500 people just to find 40

          5  who would take the job.

          6                 The basis of this merger was to

          7  increase the survivability of cardiac arrest

          8  patients in the field. According to the European

          9  Heart Journal, an internationally renown and

         10  respected medical journal, in their April issue they

         11  reported that the survivability of a cardiac arrest

         12  patient in the field is directly correlated to the

         13  level of experience of the emergency medical

         14  technician or paramedic.

         15                 There is some good news. EMS

         16  productivity has never been higher and response

         17  times have never been lower.

         18                 The members of this service through

         19  their hard work have shaved a full two and a half

         20  minutes from their response time.

         21                 Basic life support units arrive at

         22  the most critical emergencies in just six and a half

         23  minutes. Response times for paramedic units,

         24  however, still lag behind the goals outlined in the

         25  merger memo of understanding.
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          2                 The only way to achieve these goals

          3  is to increase staff.

          4                 In summation, unless the issues of

          5  attrition and the issues and the inability to

          6  recruit or address, not only will we never achieve a

          7  true level of pre-hospital care that New York City

          8  deserves, but we will also continue to lose our best

          9  and most experienced personnel which will also

         10  negatively impact on the care the citizens this

         11  great city receive.

         12                 At prior hearings before this

         13  Council, the issue of the disparity between my

         14  members and the uniformed services of this City have

         15  been raised. I am telling you today that the time

         16  for talk is over. The need for action is now.

         17                 Perhaps a mandate from this Committee

         18  of the full Council is what is needed to bring all

         19  five together to address these serious problems.

         20                 I want to thank you for the

         21  opportunity to speak here today, and I would be

         22  pleased to answer any questions, however, I would

         23  like to depart from my written remarks for one

         24  moment.

         25                 A lot of speech, or a lot of
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          2  questions today have revolved around the admissions

          3  to the municipal hospital system and the numbers

          4  that everybody are looking at is from numbers that

          5  I, myself, have promulgated. Those were numbers that

          6  we got from the Health and Hospitals Corporation and

          7  that they admitted to, in fact, were their numbers

          8  at their May Board meeting.

          9                 And what we pointed out in our scope

         10  of purpose there was to show that wherever there was

         11  an increase in the so-called voluntary hospitals,

         12  there was a significant decrease in the associated

         13  municipal hospital admissions in those areas that

         14  they served.

         15                 We look up in the Bronx where Our

         16  Lady of Mercy has increased their tours, there is a

         17  significant decline in the admissions to North

         18  Central Bronx Hospital.

         19                 In Harlem, the Columbia Presbyterian

         20  Allan Pavilion has started more units, and Harlem

         21  Hospital's admissions are drastically down.

         22                 In Queens where North Shore

         23  University Hospital start running ambulance, Queens

         24  General Hospital is significantly down. The list

         25  goes on and on. If this had happened in just one
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          2  area or two areas, I would say it was coincidence.

          3  But I think we are not being told the truth in this

          4  Council today and I am here to set that right too.

          5                 I am welcoming any questions you

          6  might have.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you very

          8  much. On those factors we will touch base with you

          9  through the attorney and we will explore some more

         10  of those numbers, because it is an important notion.

         11                 I want, as the responsible person for

         12  this Committee, I want response time, yes. I want

         13  patients to be able to get the care that they need

         14  as quickly as possible. And I do not want the public

         15  hospital system decimated under rules that the

         16  voluntaries are taking patients that could and

         17  perhaps maybe should go to in municipals. We have to

         18  find that balance.

         19                 You raise a couple of issues, Mr.

         20  President, and one of them of course is the

         21  personnel issue. We have to be careful at this

         22  table, we don't want to get in the middle of your

         23  collective bargaining; however, if you see a need

         24  for additional bodies, if you are telling me that

         25  you have to have an inordinate amount of overtime,
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          2  that gives a sense that the regular number of

          3  full-time workers are not there, and you are saying

          4  you are having a difficulty in recruiting them.

          5                 Let me ask you a question:

          6  Commissioner Von Essen made reference to the fact

          7  that there is a fire cadet program and that as they

          8  go through the cadet program they then become EMTs,

          9  is that helping? Have you seen any positive results

         10  of that personnel ladder?

         11                 MR. BAHNKEN: I do not believe that

         12  program is still going on. I believe that the Fire

         13  Cadet Program has effectively ended. We have gone

         14  back to -- we have actually scaled back the

         15  requirements for this job to become an EMT in this

         16  City. At one point in time it was required to have a

         17  few years of college, or two years military or one

         18  year full-time experience. We have gone back to the

         19  hiring standards of the late eighties where you need

         20  a driver's license, a high school diploma, an EMT

         21  card and a pulse, and that is about all you need,

         22  and we still cannot get people to take this job.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Well, let me ask

         24  you, when the Fire Cadet Program did exist, were you

         25  getting people in any --
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          2                 MR. BAHNKEN: I think the total number

          3  of people was 80, that I saw come through the Fire

          4  Cadet Program, so I am not sure of the statistic

          5  numbers.

          6                 They also came in to go to the Fire

          7  Department. This was just a stopping point to become

          8  firefighter. I am a career paramedic. I have been on

          9  this job for 12 years. I have never wanted to be a

         10  firefighter, I have never wanted to be a police

         11  officer, I have always wanted to be a paramedic. And

         12  I believe that to say that a paramedic with advanced

         13  cardiac life support certification, the same

         14  certification required by an emergency room

         15  physician, and then to tell him that it is a career

         16  promotion to go out and put water on a fire, is

         17  hardly taking advantage of the skills, the

         18  experience and the knowledge that I possess.

         19                 I fault nobody in the Fire

         20  Department. It is a very dangerous job, and it is

         21  not something that I am interested in doing, but

         22  that should not be the end of my career path after

         23  years of dedicated service to this City.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Noted.

         25                 I want to continue discussion with
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          2  you guys off the record.

          3                 MR. BAHNKEN: I would be happy to meet

          4  with you at any time.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Because we really

          6  want to be able to have people in this field that

          7  really can provide quality care that many of your

          8  workers are doing.

          9                 You are in a life and death field.

         10  Very often the fact is you can reach a patient and

         11  stabilize that patient is what allows the patient to

         12  remain on earth, and we want to make sure that the

         13  guys that are out there doing that, (a) know what

         14  they are doing and are committed to what they are

         15  doing, and have good morale, because it can all

         16  result in a negative impact on a human being who is

         17  depending on you to get to a hospital where they get

         18  into an emergency room and see a physician. So, we

         19  need to talk further on that.

         20                 MR. BAHNKEN: I agree wholeheartedly,

         21  sir.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Any questions?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Council Member

         25  Michels.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I very much

          3  appreciate your testimony.

          4                 The first thing has nothing to do

          5  with what I was questioning before the Greater

          6  Hospital on. It has to do with one of the problems I

          7  have with the merger, and that was the fact that you

          8  were merging a non-uniformed service with a

          9  uniformed service, and I thought that at the very

         10  least what they should do is make EMS a uniformed

         11  service. Do you agree or disagree with that?

         12                 MR. BAHNKEN: I agree wholeheartedly,

         13  sir. I think that it sends a very strong message,

         14  not even subliminal, that when you have a group of

         15  EMTs and paramedics out there who have always

         16  answered the emergency call, the emergency needs of

         17  the citizenry of this City, be it the World Trade

         18  Center bombing, plane crashes, train crashes, riots,

         19  or just the daily cardiac arrests, respiratory

         20  arrests, heart attacks, and then to stand there

         21  shoulder-to-shoulder with the Police Officers and

         22  the firefighters and say you are not good enough to

         23  be equal to, that sends a very strong message that

         24  drives people out of here.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: That was
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          2  always a difficulty I had, but basically it was the

          3  fact that I had the experience that the Fire

          4  Department years ago, not under this Commissioner,

          5  but in prior commissioners, with respect to the Fire

          6  Department, vis-a-vis the fire marshals, even though

          7  they were both uniformed personnel, I just found

          8  that since they were not firemen, that they were not

          9  treated very well and very often this body had to be

         10  the body that came in defense of the fire marshal to

         11  make sure they were treated equally, and every time

         12  we turned around they closed another base or

         13  something and to its credit Commissioner Safir

         14  actually opened up a base that had been closed and

         15  we all know that some of us who lived in these

         16  communities which were in danger of fire saw the

         17  work the fire marshals had, and the Council, by

         18  reason of the fact that this happened and no one

         19  else was doing anything, we became the champion of

         20  the fire marshals, and it seems to me they were

         21  discriminating against the fellow uniformed agency,

         22  and that it is only logical, and logic plays a big

         23  part in my life, that they would certainly

         24  discriminate and not treat you properly as a

         25  non-uniformed service.
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          2                 So I hope that one of your objectives

          3  is to make yourself uniformed services, and I would

          4  like to see that happen, certainly before I leave

          5  the Council.

          6                 MR. BAHNKEN: We would like that to

          7  happen, too, sir.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I believe

          9  that is extremely important.

         10                 Now, getting back to these figures

         11  which supposedly are from outside of the air, the

         12  increase in the voluntaries and the decrease in the

         13  Health and Hospitals Corporation runs, those figures

         14  came from you, from what I understand.

         15                 MR. BAHNKEN: Yes, sir.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: How did you

         17  go about getting those statistics?

         18                 MR. BAHNKEN: Well, we have sources in

         19  the Health and Hospitals Corporation, absolutely,

         20  and we were interested --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Why should we

         22  rely on those figures?

         23                 MR. BAHNKEN: Well, at the May meeting

         24  of the HHC Board on the record they acknowledge that

         25  those facts are correct. Those figures are correct.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: What are they

          3  doing about it?

          4                 MR. BAHNKEN: I don't know what they

          5  are doing about it.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Did they say

          7  anything? Did they say this is where we are being

          8  raided, they are taking our patients away and

          9  bringing them to other places, we have to do

         10  something about it? Did they say any of that?

         11                 MR. BAHNKEN: No, sir, they were very

         12  concerned.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: When   they

         14  learned there was probably a reason for it, and I

         15  assume that is the reason for it, the fact that the

         16  EMS service was now using private hospitals, private

         17  ambulances from voluntary hospitals, do you believe

         18  that is the source of the problem?

         19                 MR. BAHNKEN: Well --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Or Health and

         21  Hospitals Corporation or EMS ambulances actually

         22  taking patients to the private hospitals?

         23                 MR. BAHNKEN: Well, I think that that

         24  is key to the whole issue here. There is a lot of

         25  money to be made in the emergency medical services.
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          2  Some other cities, even in New York, some of the

          3  smaller municipalities have gone back to citizing

          4  their ambulance fleets, their EMS services.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: What does

          6  that mean? Privatizing them?

          7                 MR. BAHNKEN: No, from privatization,

          8  bringing them back under City Control, because there

          9  is money in --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Well, there

         11  is a competition here. Now you have EMS which is,

         12  are they considered part EMS? What are they

         13  considered, these private ambulance companies?

         14                 MR. BAHNKEN: Well, these private

         15  ambulance companies, or private hospitals, they are

         16  not part of the municipal --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: They are not

         18  part of the EMS service?

         19                 MR. BAHNKEN: They operate in a system

         20  but they are not part of the municipal --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Are they

         22  increasing, decreasing? How did they come about?

         23                 MR. BAHNKEN: There has always been

         24  private hospital ambulances operating or voluntary

         25  hospital ambulances operating within the system.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Was that only

          3  when there wasn't an EMS ambulance which could

          4  respond?

          5                 MR. BAHNKEN: Well, they had specific

          6  areas. What we had noticed, though, is there is a

          7  dramatic increase in the number of those tours that

          8  are out there.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Are there any

         10  controls on that increase?

         11                 MR. BAHNKEN: Well, I heard somebody

         12  before mention the idea of a certificate of need on

         13  where the ambulances may operate when they file for

         14  a certificate of need. Is everybody falling all over

         15  themselves to put in certificate of needs for East

         16  New York let's say or the South Bronx, and then I

         17  see them putting in certificates of need for

         18  Bronxdale and Eastern Queens, Riverdale I should

         19  say, and Eastern Queens.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: But they

         21  wouldn't be needed if we had EMS ambulances covering

         22  those areas.

         23                 MR. BAHNKEN: You are absolutely

         24  right, sir.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Sufficient
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          2  numbers with a base.

          3                 MR. BAHNKEN: And there should be

          4  sufficient numbers.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And are we

          6  increasing in the EMS ambulances, is there an

          7  increase?

          8                 MR. BAHNKEN: Well, I have seen

          9  increases in tours, I have not seen an adequate in

         10  staff to sufficiently run those ambulances. Those

         11  staff are provided through mandatory overtime.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: The

         13  ambulances are coming from the voluntary hospitals,

         14  the non-HHC, are increasing.

         15                 MR. BAHNKEN: Yes, sir.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And now we

         17  find out that, which is logical, that the non-EMS

         18  ambulances are taking more of their patients back to

         19  the hospitals from which they are employed.

         20                 MR. BAHNKEN: Well, what I have

         21  noticed --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Why are we

         23  surprised?

         24                 MR. BAHNKEN: I am not surprised, but

         25  what I have noticed is I am not saying where they
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          2  are taking them to, I am just noticing that wherever

          3  there is a greater participation of voluntary

          4  hospital ambulances in the system, there is a marked

          5  decrease in the admissions to municipal hospitals,

          6  you can draw whatever conclusion --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: We have to

          8  find out where they are taking them.

          9                 MR. BAHNKEN: Well, I have an idea of

         10  where they are taking them. We all have an idea.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I think those

         12  things should be determined.

         13                 MR. BAHNKEN: I am working on those

         14  figures.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: There should

         16  be some sort of -- not necessarily by you, but maybe

         17  by this Committee, we ought to find out what is

         18  going on here. We have a right to know what is

         19  happening, and if it is what people in the City

         20  want, then let it happen. If it is not, we at least

         21  should know what is happening here. Because some of

         22  us feel very strong that we should not lose our

         23  hospitals, the Health and Hospitals Corporation.

         24                 MR. BAHNKEN: I think that we should

         25  also not lose our municipal ambulance service.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: We are going

          3  to lose them if we don't have patients in those

          4  hospitals.

          5                 MR. BAHNKEN: Health care should not

          6  be motivated by profit service. That is the reason

          7  why HHC was established, that is the reason why we

          8  have a municipal service, EMS, because health care

          9  should not be motivated by how much money is in it.

         10  It should be motivated by delivering quality care to

         11  the citizenry of New York.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Which I have

         13  said so many times in the Health Committee, is that

         14  if you cannot provide the services in the hospitals,

         15  you are not going to get the patients.

         16                 MR. BAHNKEN: Absolutely.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And the more

         18  that keeps up those hospitals are going to close.

         19  So, you don't have to come in and say they are going

         20  to privatize and close the hospital, what you are

         21  going to say is, we are going to take your

         22  personnel, self-fulfilling prophecy, you have heard

         23  that I am sure.

         24                 MR. BAHNKEN: Absolutely.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: We don't want
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          2  that to happen. We have some of the most wonderful

          3  hospitals in the world. I have myself Presbyterian

          4  Hospital in my community, my three children were

          5  born there, and I think there are fantastic

          6  hospitals, and there is a place for them, there is a

          7  place for HHC and there is a place for the ambulance

          8  corps, and they should each have their separate

          9  jurisdiction.

         10                 MR. BAHNKEN: I agree.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thank you.

         12                 MR. BAHNKEN: Thank you, sir.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Identify yourself

         14  for the record.

         15                 MR. UNGER: I am Robert Unger. I am

         16  the Legislative Counsel of the Local 2507. To pick

         17  up on where Councilman Michels was going, one of the

         18  pieces that we have been looking at very carefully

         19  on the voluntary ambulances is direct substitution

         20  of private ambulances for New York City Fire

         21  Department and ambulances, and I will give you an

         22  example that is kind of scary.

         23                 In Bayside Queens, the Northshore

         24  Hospital put in a certificate of need, and Bayside

         25  Queens is sort of an upscale, upper middle class and
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          2  upper class neighborhood in Queens County, the

          3  hospital is based in Nassau County in the all

          4  together (sic).

          5                 The Fire Department actually

          6  eliminated a paramedic unit, the New York City Fire

          7  Department withdrew paramedic service from Bayside,

          8  Queens, and allowed a hospital with a substantial

          9  profit motive, and it can be a not-for-profit, but

         10  they have to make money. When we talk about

         11  not-for-profit, you know, we have to look at

         12  salaries, and there is no profit because if your

         13  administrator is making 800 --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: The

         15  Corporation doesn't make a profit but the people

         16  working for --

         17                 MR. UNGER: Yes, plenty of money, and

         18  they own plenty of real estate and --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: 501C3s do not

         20  make profits --

         21                 MR. UNGER: All of these voluntary

         22  hospitals are out acquiring each other, just like

         23  General Motors or just like when Chrysler and then

         24  Benz got together, you know it states not-for-profit

         25  but it is big business. The New York City Fire
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          2  Department withdrew from Bayside Queens. Now what is

          3  up with that? I hate to use that colloquialism but

          4  let's think about what we are doing here. We have

          5  had other instances where the City Fire Department

          6  EMS resources have been withdrawn from a community

          7  and substituted by an unsupervised private hospital.

          8  When I say unsupervised, the chain of command of the

          9  New York City Fire Department EMS, which is the big

         10  EMS in the City, and has a coordinated system for

         11  operating itself, the private hospitals are not

         12  subject to the command of the command structure of

         13  the Fire Department EMS, so certain parts of the

         14  City units are being disbanded or relocated out of a

         15  community and being substituted by -- Howard Safir

         16  used to say ships passing in the night, he used to

         17  talk about us that way, well they are being

         18  substituted by ships passing in the night, private

         19  hospital ambulances that are under the control of

         20  people who are looking at bottom line, not the

         21  health line, we call it "Wallet Triage", where are

         22  we going and who are we picking up has to do with

         23  how much your coverage is or how much money you have

         24  got.

         25                 Now, during the 911 blackout a couple
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          2  of months ago, the big Citywide 911 failure, a

          3  gentleman, a young man had a heart attack, cardiac

          4  arrest up in Bayside, Queens, around 215th, 216th

          5  Street, Northern Boulevard. Couldn't reach 911

          6  because it was broken, so his girlfriend ran down

          7  Northern Boulevard looking for a way to get some

          8  help. You know, she ran right past the street corner

          9  where the Fire Department EMS paramedic unit used to

         10  be assigned to wait for its calls. They weren't

         11  there because they were disbanded. That unit doesn't

         12  exist anymore and that individual is dead.

         13                 Now, what are we doing? And we are

         14  doing it in some of the poorest communities in the

         15  City that have the highest need for these services.

         16                 I mean, this is something where the

         17  voluntaries have decided we can make a lot of money

         18  doing this, let's not mistake what this is all

         19  about. It is not about the community and it is not

         20  about outreach and it is not about being nice, the

         21  sudden influx of ambulances is because there is a

         22  sudden need for revenue, and any revenue that is

         23  being picked up in the voluntaries is being lost

         24  from the City, EMS operates at a deficit in New York

         25  City, if we just collected our bills, if the
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          2  Administration would just collect 60 percent of our

          3  bills, not only would New York City EMS break even,

          4  it would turn a profit for the City of New York,

          5  like in other cities that have city ties there are

          6  EMS services.

          7                 So, I think there is probably a lot

          8  the Committee could look at, in terms of

          9  alternatives to the constant increases in

         10  profiteering, wallet triaging ambulances throughout

         11  New York City and I thank you for your time, Mr.

         12  Chairman.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 Our next witness will be the EMS

         16  Lieutenants and Captains Union, Donald Rothschild.

         17                 Good afternoon, Mr. Rothschild.

         18                 MR. ROTHSCHILD: Good afternoon. Good

         19  afternoon, Mr. Chairman, and members of the

         20  Committee. My name is Donald Rothschild and I am

         21  President of the EMS Lieutenants and captains union,

         22  AFSCME Local 3621, District Council 37.

         23                 I am here today to report on the

         24  third anniversary of the merger of the Emergency

         25  Medical Service and the New York City Fire
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          2  Department. I will try and keep this as brief as

          3  possible, I will skip through some of the testimony

          4  because I know it has been a long day.

          5                 Last year I testified at the Public

          6  Safety Committee that since the merger there have

          7  been some ups and downs that have affected ambulance

          8  response time to emergency requests. I even

          9  commended the Department for realizing that the

         10  changes that had previously been made did not work

         11  and for having the faith to allow the Emergency

         12  Medical Professionals to operate EMS command.

         13                 However, just as things seem to be

         14  getting better, the opposite occurred. Look at the

         15  manpower issue, one of the greatest problems facing

         16  us. While the Department has claimed that it has

         17  hired additional personnel, it is not said how many

         18  have left the Department or other positions both in

         19  and out of the municipal workforce.

         20                 With an upcoming police academy class

         21  coming in a few short weeks, we will most likely

         22  lose many more.

         23                 The Department will also claim that

         24  they fielded additional units to help lower the

         25  response times but will not tell you that the
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          2  manpower does not exist to staff those units.

          3                 Add to this the number of people who

          4  are out for line of duty injuries, precertification

          5  training programs, vacations, et cetera, the number

          6  of vacancies increases even more.

          7                 So instead of having the resources to

          8  fill the new units and cover the various vacancies,

          9  the Department's answer is to have my members

         10  mandate EMTs and paramedics several times a week to

         11  work overtime tours to fill those units.

         12                 This in turn has created a situation

         13  of having a hostile work environment for both EMS

         14  officers and those they supervise and an overworked

         15  and exhaustive work force. It is only through the

         16  dedication to the patients that are served that we

         17  have not had a serious incident caused by

         18  exhaustion.

         19                 This situation could be remedied if

         20  the Office of Management and Budget increased the

         21  job line to fill these units and help lower the

         22  response times even further.

         23                 Related to this situation is the

         24  blatant privatization of EMS jobs. Since 1996 the

         25  EMS field compliment, based on the Fire Department's
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          2  own figures, has increased by 15 percent, yet the

          3  private hospital ambulance sector has increased by a

          4  staggering 51 percent.

          5                 The ratio of municipal to private

          6  hospital units pre-merger was 79 to 21. Today that

          7  number is 75 to 25. Yet the Department claims there

          8  is no change in the ratio. In fact, there are whole

          9  areas of this City that the municipal EMS was moved

         10  out by the Department and replaced by private

         11  hospital ambulances, as was just mentioned by Mr.

         12  Unger.

         13                 Today, for example, there is

         14  absolutely no municipal ambulance presence in the

         15  entire southwestern part of Brooklyn, which includes

         16  Bayridge, Bensonhurst, Dyker Heights.

         17                 In Queens, most of the Southwest

         18  region, including Richmond Hill, Howard Beach,

         19  Bayside, Forest Hills and Jamaica, has little to no

         20  EMS presence. This creates a major problem for the

         21  EMS officer. Even though we as EMS officers are

         22  responsible for a particular response district, we

         23  have no supervisory control over these contract

         24  units.

         25                 When brought to the Department's
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          2  attention, the response was, and I quote, the

          3  Officer can fill out an incident report and forward

          4  it through the chain of command.

          5                 Unfortunately, since we have no

          6  control over these units, nothing ever gets back to

          7  us as to what action, if any, was taken. We need the

          8  ability to police the contract unit as we do our own

          9  unit. As it stands today, there has been absolutely

         10  no change in this area from when we were under

         11  Health and Hospitals Corporation.

         12                 Several weeks ago, we were forced to

         13  temporarily abandon our Maspeth Communication Center

         14  due to a structural instability. EMS communications

         15  is now housed in cramped trailers in the parking lot

         16  of our Maspeth building.

         17                 The Department's final solution is to

         18  rent space in Metrotech Plaza for several years, and

         19  disperse EMS communications to the five borough fire

         20  communications offices.

         21                 Several millions of dollars were

         22  spent to strengthen the Maspeth building. Millions

         23  more are planned for rent at Metrotech and the

         24  renovations of the five borough fire communication

         25  offices.
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          2                 We believe that this is a waste of

          3  taxpayer dollars and a disaster for EMS officers and

          4  personnel assigned to communications.

          5                 We believe that it is the

          6  Department's position to turn the Maspeth building

          7  completely over to another area of the Department.

          8  We believe that after being unsuccessful in

          9  convincing the fire alarm dispatchers into one

         10  communication center, the Department decided they

         11  could convince us that we would be better off in

         12  five separate dispatch centers, instead of the

         13  confined one we are currently in.

         14                 When the unions balked at the idea,

         15  the Department needed an answer. The water leak that

         16  caused the building instability gave them the

         17  answer.

         18                 The problem with having EMS in five

         19  dispatch centers creates a supervisory and tactical

         20  disadvantage. EMS relies on static dispatch and

         21  deployment. A Citywide EMS communications supervisor

         22  can redeploy resources more readily to areas where

         23  the call volume has increased or a multiple casualty

         24  incidence has occurred.

         25                 By having all of its dispatch
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          2  functions together, it makes the job ten times more

          3  easier. When problems occur, they can be quickly

          4  identified and resolved. At separate centers it will

          5  take longer to correct.

          6                 When there is a shortage of

          7  personnel, the officers can mix and match personnel

          8  right in the center. At separate centers, personnel

          9  who report to Queens may have to travel to Staten

         10  Island to cover a vacancy. The list goes on and on.

         11                 To spread EMS communication

         12  throughout the five boroughs is a disaster waiting

         13  to happen. We believe that the Maspeth building is

         14  easily repairable and that there is no real reason

         15  to abandon it. We have yet to see any report to

         16  counter our position.

         17                 There are many issues that still need

         18  to be resolved. A true career path is still not

         19  available to the EMS professional, and in fact stops

         20  at the EMS Chief's title.

         21                 Any title above the EMS lieutenant is

         22  an appointed position and many members wondered if

         23  they will ever rise above the current rank if they

         24  are not within a small circle of favorite sons and

         25  daughters.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            129

          1  COMMITTEE ON FIRE AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES

          2                 You and I both know that we will

          3  never see an EMS officer rise to the Chief of

          4  Department or Chief of Operation titles, since it is

          5  mandatory that those titles be from the firefighter

          6  series.

          7                 There are other areas that need major

          8  improvement. Some the Council can assist us in and

          9  others that properly belong in the collective

         10  bargaining forum. Although not in the purview of

         11  this Committee, these areas include changing the

         12  collective bargaining laws to designate EMS titles

         13  as uniformed service titles, ensuring that the EMS

         14  command receives the necessary funding to continue

         15  our mission, and finally, supporting us to begin

         16  programs to help reduce the 911 system abuse.

         17                 These programs include having the

         18  Board of Ed add to the school curriculum proper

         19  access and usage of the 911 system. We know that it

         20  is almost impossible to change the ways of adults,

         21  but we believe that teaching children at an early

         22  age the proper use of 911 will help to lead to a

         23  reduction in the system abuses that we currently

         24  face.

         25                 We also look to the Board to make it
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          2  mandatory for students to be certified in

          3  cardiopulmonary resuscitation before graduating from

          4  high school. This will help to ensure that more

          5  citizens are CPR trained, something that gives

          6  victims of cardiac arrest more of a fighting chance.

          7                 We have other ideas that are in the

          8  discussion stages and we will be more than willing

          9  to meet with you for your support and assistance.

         10                 In closing, I have often been asked

         11  if this merger was really necessary. My answer is

         12  no. All the gains that EMS has achieved in the last

         13  three years would have been achieved if we had been

         14  given the resources that are now available to us

         15  today.

         16                 In fact, if EMS was allowed to

         17  operate the way it always did, and I am talking

         18  about communications of field operations, response

         19  time would have been lower much sooner and without

         20  the need for merging the two agencies.

         21                 Thank you for your time, and I await

         22  any questions you have.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you very

         24  much for your testimony.

         25                 Just for my information, what is the
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          2  ranking? You have Lieutenant? You come in as an EMT?

          3                 MR. ROTHSCHILD: You come in as an

          4  EMT, you can either remain as an EMT or go on to

          5  become a paramedic. And as was stated earlier, the

          6  Department hasn't run a paramedic training program

          7  in the last three years, so a lot of people have

          8  been taking it out on the outside and then going

          9  through a paramedic upgrade program.

         10                 EMTs and paramedics can then take a

         11  civil service examination for EMS Lieutenant. Once

         12  you get to Lieutenant rank, captain and above are

         13  pure appointments.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay, and what is

         15  above?

         16                 MR. ROTHSCHILD: You have the EMS

         17  captain, Deputy Chief, Division Commander, then you

         18  have the Assistant Chief of the EMS command and the

         19  chief of the EMS command, and that is as far as we

         20  can go.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay. At last

         22  year's hearing, noting that the number of regional

         23  certified paramedics increased to 658 in 1997

         24  compared to 415 in 1995, the Public Safety

         25  Committee, I believe asked how many of paramedics
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          2  were for the Fire Department EMS?

          3                 MR. ROTHSCHILD: Well, as I stated,

          4  there has been no paramedic basic programs that the

          5  services run in the last three years.

          6                 I believe that the Department has run

          7  one or two paramedic upgrade programs in that time

          8  period and they are approximately I think 20 to 25

          9  individuals each. I don't if anybody completed those

         10  upgrade programs.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: When you say

         12  paramedic upgrades, are you talking EMT to

         13  paramedic?

         14                 MR. ROTHSCHILD: No, what happens is,

         15  when an EMT takes an outside paramedic training

         16  program, he is certified by the State of New York as

         17  a paramedic, but he is not permitted to operate

         18  within the 911 system under the Fire Department,

         19  unless you go through a Fire Department upgrade

         20  training program, which will include some of the

         21  regulations that are unique to the Fire Department.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay. So that is

         23  like junior paramedic to full paramedic.

         24                 MR. ROTHSCHILD: Basically. He can

         25  work for a voluntary, but he can't work for us,
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          2  which makes no sense.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Say that again.

          4                 MR. ROTHSCHILD: He can work for the

          5  privates, but he cannot work for us until he goes to

          6  the Fire Department upgrade program.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: So, if Columbia

          8  Presbyterian had an ambulance --

          9                 MR. ROTHSCHILD: He can work for them.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: He can work for

         11  them, even though they are functioning under the 911

         12  system.

         13                 MR. ROTHSCHILD: Under the 911 system,

         14  correct.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Interesting.

         16                 MR. ROTHSCHILD: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: How many

         18  paramedics were added to the EMS, if you know?

         19                 MR. ROTHSCHILD: I would refer that to

         20  Mr. Bahnken. It is his local.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay. All right,

         22  thank you very much. I am sure we will be back in

         23  touch with you.

         24                 MR. ROTHSCHILD: Any time.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: David Rosenzweig.
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          2                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: I appreciate the

          3  opportunity to respond to some of the testimony that

          4  was made during this afternoon's --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Please identify

          6  yourself for the record.

          7                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: I am sorry?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Identify yourself

          9  for the record.

         10                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: I am David

         11  Rosenzweig, President of the Fire Alarm Dispatchers

         12  Benevolent Association, and I am wearing two hats

         13  today in my testimony. I am also chairman of the MLT

         14  Workers' Comp Committee.

         15                 The first part of my testimony

         16  involves mandated overtime, staffing, the inadequacy

         17  of the staffing in EMS as it relates to workers comp

         18  injuries.

         19                 I find, and I have done extensive

         20  study and I have been involved with the workers comp

         21  for City workers for quite some time, and I find

         22  that this mandated overtime is extremely debilitated

         23  at best.

         24                 Think of it this way, you have people

         25  driving ambulances in the New York City that have to
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          2  work 18 hours or 16 hours, and they go home, they

          3  have eight hours off, which means they basically get

          4  three to four hours sleep, if they get that much,

          5  and they are right back on the job driving for

          6  another 16 hours. You really don't want people

          7  driving ambulances or any kind of emergency

          8  equipment around the streets of New York with four

          9  or five hours sleep, and you cannot do that two or

         10  three days a week.

         11                 It is extremely important that the

         12  staffing levels for EMS, for the increase, to

         13  adequate level so that the regular tour of duty,

         14  which is an eight hour tour, can be maintained.

         15  People should not be mandated to work 16 hours a

         16  day, particularly when it adds to the additional

         17  affect of injuries, which is definitely affecting

         18  the EMS personnel.

         19                 The other problem that I find is that

         20  the injuries that these people sustain, after they

         21  are out for more than 18 months they are terminated.

         22  Where their counterparts in the Fire Department, the

         23  firefighters, lieutenants, captains, if they are in

         24  an ambulance or a fire engine, if they are in a fire

         25  engine and they have an accident and they end up
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          2  getting injured, they go on unlimited sick leave.

          3  When they get better they come back to work. In EMS

          4  they are covered under workers' comp rule, and under

          5  the civil service law, section 71, once they are out

          6  18 months, they do not intend to return to work,

          7  they are terminated. That means, you have ten years,

          8  12 years, 15 years, 18 years, 25 years, you either

          9  retire, you are forced to retire and wait until your

         10  right age and you start collecting your pension, or,

         11  okay, you find another job somewhere else when you

         12  are ready to work, or you end up getting disability

         13  from workers' comp.  It is not fair. They should be

         14  treated the same.

         15                 But the issue is that this is caused

         16  by the fact that they are being forced to work these

         17  additional hours, and I think that we really need to

         18  zero in on that particular issue.

         19                 Now, the other issue that I wanted to

         20  discuss, which was in regard to this afternoon's

         21  testimony is basically consolidation of

         22  communication officers in regard to response times

         23  in the New York City Fire Department.

         24                 I represented approximately 200

         25  people, we process over a million alarms a year, a
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          2  million responses a year, in addition to all other

          3  kinds of complaints. We have the fastest processing

          4  time in the entire country, 43 seconds. We do it in

          5  five separate offices. There is nothing wrong with

          6  five separate offices, it works quite well. As a

          7  matter of fact, when you have a situation, instead

          8  of having one office be totally disabled, like they

          9  have in Maspeth right now, where they have to go

         10  into trailers, we have five separate offices, so at

         11  any one time you only have one borough that really

         12  needs to be looked after and we can always picked up

         13  the slack.

         14                 So, we have the redundancy. EMS does

         15  not have the redundancy, which is unfortunate. They

         16  should.

         17                 Part of the problem that I feel is

         18  that the 911 operators who take the calls initially,

         19  when you dial 911 they answer the call, they do an

         20  inquiry first.

         21                 When they do that inquiry, they are

         22  wasting 45 seconds. They should not be doing any

         23  inquiry at all, they should be doing exactly what

         24  they do with the Fire Department. If you would call

         25  911 and you say you want to report a fire, they
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          2  transfer you to the Fire Department, your have

          3  professional fire alarm dispatchers taking the

          4  information. The same thing should be happening with

          5  EMS. You dial 911, you say you have an injury, you

          6  need an ambulance, whatever your problem is, that

          7  call should be transferred immediately. By doing

          8  that you would be saving 40 to 50 seconds. That will

          9  reduce the response time dramatically. Because as it

         10  stands right now, they are making inquiries and then

         11  they are transferring the call and it is getting

         12  duplicative questions which sometimes either

         13  conflict with the initial questioning, and of course

         14  they get additional questions because they are doing

         15  triage.

         16                 My recommendation is that they stop

         17  that, they go right to the EMT call-takers and let

         18  them do the triage immediately and save 40 to 45

         19  seconds. This will definitely make the response time

         20  that much faster.

         21                 The reason I am concerned about that

         22  is the response time is quite important. See, when

         23  the MOU was developed, one of the concepts was that

         24  a fire engine, the CFR-D engine, would not respond

         25  unless an ambulance could not arrive on the scene
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          2  within five minutes.

          3                 In fact, we haven't even implemented

          4  that program, and the reason we haven't implemented

          5  the program is because we don't dispatch ambulances

          6  from a unified center, Fire and EMS, which is the

          7  concept which is in the capital budget at this

          8  particular time to rehab the existing five offices

          9  and to do the dispatch function from each individual

         10  borough where ambulances and fire engines will be

         11  dispatched. And when an ambulance is not available

         12  within five minutes, then we will send an engine.

         13  When an ambulance is not available within five

         14  minutes, when an ambulance is available within five

         15  minutes, then no engine will be sent.

         16                 This will allow that engine to be in

         17  reserve so they can respond to another medical

         18  emergency.

         19                 What we have right now is people

         20  waiting for emergency care and you have duplicative

         21  effort. You have a fire engine, a basic life

         22  support, advanced life support and the police car

         23  all in the same location when two or three blocks

         24  away you don't have anybody responding because you

         25  had all of these people within the same block.
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          2                 So, by improving the dispatch

          3  function of the people that are doing the type of

          4  call taking, the type of call answering, and also

          5  the dispatching, you are going to eliminate the

          6  duplication, number one, you are going to reduce the

          7  response time, number two, and number three, you are

          8  going to make the system that much more efficient in

          9  allowing the fire engines to be available for both

         10  fires, emergencies and additional medical responses.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you very

         13  much, Mr. Rosenzweig.

         14                 The Committee has received testimony

         15  from Emanuel Weisgres, Emergency Medical Technician,

         16  and it is accepted into the record.

         17                 The next presenter will be Richard

         18  McAllan.

         19                 Mr. McAllan, before you begin I am

         20  just going to take the privilege of the chair and

         21  ask you to summarize your testimony. I have thumbed

         22  through it myself, but see if you can give us the

         23  succinct version of it.

         24                 Push the button.

         25                 MR. McALLAN: Good afternoon. It is my
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          2  pleasure to appear in front of this Committee. I

          3  have heard a lot of testimony today, I am well aware

          4  you need to move along.

          5                 But there are a couple of issues,

          6  first, and with all due respect to Mr. Unger, the

          7  term I am familiar with is "wallet biopsy" when it

          8  comes to where a patient is going to end up in an

          9  emergency room.

         10                 There have been a lot of changes in

         11  the health care industry, and key among them is that

         12  the voluntary hospital units are much hungrier than

         13  they used to be for patients.

         14                 So, what has happened in the last few

         15  years is you have seen those units grow

         16  dramatically, but much more importantly you see them

         17  encircle the Health and Hospital emergency rooms.

         18                 I don't think the City Council

         19  understood what they were doing when they merged or

         20  allowed the Fire Department to do a hostile

         21  take-over of New York City EMS. EMS lost its

         22  political insulation. We all know that the Mayor

         23  wants to destroy the New York City Health and

         24  Hospitals Corporation, and they hit upon the system

         25  to do it.
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          2                 I provided you today with an audit

          3  report that says even from the early nineties, the

          4  voluntary hospitals were taking 80 percent plus of

          5  their patients back to their respective

          6  institutions.

          7                 So, now you have a situation where,

          8  yes, well, they may only be 25 percent of the

          9  system, but they are taking everyone back to the

         10  name that appears on the ambulance, and it has put

         11  Health and Hospital emergency rooms on the ropes.

         12  You need to have a neutral EMS. My job does not

         13  depend on where my patient goes to. The voluntary

         14  hospital units, their job in some ways does depend

         15  on where that patient goes to. Suddenly there are

         16  exceptions to these comments, it is not as

         17  simplistic as that, but believe me, they have to

         18  produce some of these institutions, and we have

         19  fights with them, the EMS employees have fights with

         20  them when they get to the scene, and they want a

         21  particular patient to go to a closer emergency room,

         22  and oh, no, no, no, they have got to go back to the

         23  emergency room that is painted on the side of that

         24  ambulance.

         25                 I mean, the system is unacceptable,
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          2  and it has to be changed to a neutral EMS that

          3  operates the municipal ambulance service.

          4                 I couldn't imagine the firemen who

          5  were here earlier today, or the Fire Administration

          6  was here earlier today, agreeing to the removal of

          7  their Bayside fire engine, and substitution that

          8  with Northshore Hospital Fire Department, couldn't

          9  imagine. Well, that is what they are doing to us,

         10  and they looked at us straight across the bargaining

         11  table and say, well, those guys get the preferential

         12  areas, we can't do anything about that. Well, those

         13  guys get that, I am afraid to say that the system

         14  has gone off in the wrong direction and the

         15  municipal hospitals are in terrible trouble as a

         16  result of it, because I watched testimony here today

         17  that is just outrageous to suggest that the

         18  voluntary hospitals are not making a lot of money

         19  off what they are doing. And in particular, what is

         20  unmentioned here, and if you look through state law

         21  is a lot of sections where these hospitals are able

         22  to charge ambulance operations to the Medicaid rate

         23  base, and so all of a sudden Medicaid patients have

         24  become attractive to voluntary institutions and I

         25  believe that is where the sudden increase of these
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          2  units has come from.

          3                 So, that the key issue here, the City

          4  Council, in my opinion, must take an urgent look at

          5  what we are going to do to have a neutral EMS.

          6                 And yes, I understand these issues

          7  are subtle, but I assure you, they can talk most

          8  patients in going back to a particular emergency

          9  room, particularly if the patient say has new onset

         10  chest pain or something like this and really doesn't

         11  have a doctor or a long established relationship

         12  with, say, Mount Sinai or some other place where you

         13  get treated for say a more exotic disease such as

         14  cancer or some other problem. They are very likely

         15  to go to where they are told to go by the crew.

         16                 Anyway, I also presented testimony

         17  today on the merger lawsuit.

         18                 Three years ago when this ill-advised

         19  merger was taken, I and another paramedic by the

         20  name of Miriam Arnold, we filed an individual

         21  lawsuit against the merger because the Giuliani

         22  Administration did not obtain an act to the State

         23  Legislature to amend the HHC act.

         24                 District Council 37 refused to do

         25  that. In fact they testified in front of the City

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            145

          1  COMMITTEE ON FIRE AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES

          2  Council that it required an act to the State

          3  Legislature, but then let this merger go through. We

          4  all know the horrible corruption that surfaced at DC

          5  37 in the last three years, and we just mention that

          6  in passing, DC 37 didn't even stop -- or file suit

          7  on our behalf. They did of course for the Coney

          8  Island workers who were also members, or many of

          9  them are members of District Council 37, Local 420,

         10  1549, so on, they wouldn't do it for 2507. They

         11  wouldn't do it for the Lieutenants and Captains,

         12  they let us go into the Fire Department, which in my

         13  view has been a trip through hell.

         14                 So, anyway, the Fire Department is

         15  hardly a neutral agency, they have their own agenda

         16  and obviously their agenda has been one that is good

         17  for the Fire Department, not necessarily patient

         18  care. I do not oppose the CFR program, I definitely

         19  oppose the CFR program with the Fire Department

         20  being in charge of New York City EMS. You see how

         21  bad the statistics are for the paramedics, the Fire

         22  Department has sucked up the money, and has put

         23  everything into CFRs.

         24                 You look at the Mayor's Management

         25  Report, people that need paramedic units, need
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          2  advance life support services in eight to ten

          3  minutes, in which the Fire Department promised the

          4  City Council they would provide 90 percent of the

          5  time in under ten minutes, they are barely at 50

          6  percent, and certainly the other speakers here today

          7  have already said there are not paramedic courses,

          8  they are not upgrading the paramedics, they are just

          9  not running the units. And so then in the wealthier

         10  areas, well, they will put out a few voluntary units

         11  so they get the paramedics, but the people in the

         12  South Bronx, you say, well why don't you have one of

         13  those units in Queens go up there and help us every

         14  now and then, you know? Even on a rotating basis.

         15  Oh, no, can't do that. I say, well, the 911 system?

         16  Oh, no, no, we wouldn't want that.

         17                 So, President Rothschild has already

         18  touched a little bit on the communication trailer

         19  scandal. I have provided the Committee with

         20  information on that. It should be emphasized that

         21  the Maspeth EMS building which contains New York

         22  City EMS communications is safe and is still

         23  occupied and has remained occupied 24 hours a day,

         24  since the alleged emergency.

         25                 I do not debate that there was a
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          2  watermain break, I do not debate the building needed

          3  emergency repair, no question about it. But the

          4  building is safe, the repairs in that building could

          5  be completed for a mere $2 million, and I have

          6  provided the Committee today with letters from the

          7  Fire Department to Comptroller Hevesi, that we are

          8  looking for probably 40 or 50 million worth of

          9  no-bid contracts, with emergency contracts are

         10  stretching out to year 2003. Just unbelievable

         11  scandal here.

         12                 And what we urge the City Council to

         13  do is to investigate this and have the Fire

         14  Department finish repairs on our building at once.

         15                 What happens two and three years down

         16  the road is another conversation and more time. The

         17  millennium is on us. We are back in our building,

         18  our system is fully operational, the 911 lines are

         19  in there, the radios are in there, a couple of

         20  computer upgrades and we are back on line.  The

         21  system could go back on line in our building this

         22  afternoon. All they have to do is reroute some of

         23  the phone lines and other equipment. The system

         24  remained operational during the building emergency.

         25  Some firemen, they come in and say, oh, well, we
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          2  can't use the place again - that's not true. They

          3  don't want to use the place again, which is quite a

          4  different issue.

          5                 So, we have a situation here where

          6  the firemen have reinstituted a gag order where they

          7  have turned around to store the career ladders, the

          8  medical career ladders that we had, and then they

          9  come in here and say, well, gee, we think the

         10  voluntary hospitals are the best things going. I am

         11  quite concerned that if they had their way we

         12  wouldn't be here at all.

         13                 So, all of the different funding

         14  mechanisms have to be looked at. The funding

         15  mechanism of Medicaid and Medicare, as you know they

         16  got themselves in trouble with Medicare billing, and

         17  then we have to turn around and make a neutral EMS

         18  for New York City.

         19                 If you look at that audit report from

         20  HHC, which I believe was very carefully hidden at

         21  the time of the merger, the audit report said that

         22  the voluntary hospitals were estimated,

         23  conservatively estimated by the auditor to be making

         24  five times what they were paying to run those

         25  ambulances. They estimated approximately $25 million
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          2  in revenue for approximately $5 million in cost. I

          3  would submit to you those numbers are much higher

          4  now, because of medicaid reimbursement, and I would

          5  also submit to you that if a patient was having a

          6  heart attack or acute pulmonary edema, it arrives at

          7  a particular emergency room, whatever the ambulance

          8  operation balance sheets may show, obviously if that

          9  patient gets admitted for five days or ten days

         10  upstairs, there is a significant amount of money

         11  involved here, a significant amount of hospital

         12  revenue involved here. And that is what is escaping

         13  the notice of the other speakers here today.

         14                 I mean, simply put, there is no free

         15  lunch here, and the City Council ought to be

         16  developing a plan where we can fund New York City

         17  EMS from one source and we can have a neutral New

         18  York City EMS, with a Board of Directors that

         19  represents everyone, so that no one group can get or

         20  make illegal gains over the other group, and where

         21  everyone is employed by that same agency for the

         22  municipal ambulance service, so that there is direct

         23  control over these particular units and these

         24  particular ambulance operations.

         25                 So, to that end, I would urge the New
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          2  York City Council to investigate creating a separate

          3  New York City Emergency Medical Service. And it is

          4  very possible in the next few weeks, the New York

          5  State Appellate Division will move that this merger

          6  is illegal, and order New York City EMS to be

          7  transferred back to its lawful parent, the New York

          8  City Health and Hospital Corporation. And I assure

          9  you, I can't wait.

         10                 So, I would say it again for the

         11  record, I would much rather see an independent EMS.

         12  That would of course require an act of the State

         13  Legislature.

         14                 Thank you very much, sir.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you very

         16  much. You have brought some interesting points for

         17  us to consider.

         18                 Councilman Michels, do you have a

         19  question?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes. Just it

         21  seems to me that neither the present system is

         22  satisfactory because of what is happening, nor going

         23  back to the -- I think that would be horrible to go

         24  back to HHC because they were not treated well in

         25  HHC either.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            151

          1  COMMITTEE ON FIRE AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES

          2                 MR. McALLAN: I agree with that, sir.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: The main

          4  purpose of EMS is to serve the people of this city

          5  on an emergency basis, and I think what we have to

          6  do is make sure that they go to the closest

          7  hospital, that they are picked up by the ambulance

          8  closest to them, and that the people are well

          9  trained and well paid, and that it be done on a

         10  basis of what is good for the patient, not what is

         11  good for the hospital, what is good for the

         12  ambulance and the ambulance driver. The paramount

         13  consideration has to be what is good for the

         14  patient. And what is good for the patient is to have

         15  people in an EMS service that feel good about their

         16  job, and their morale is high, and that they know

         17  they are well paid and they are taking the patient

         18  who is going to get the best possible treatment.

         19                 MR. McALLAN: That is quite correct,

         20  sir.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I am not

         22  trying to be too penalizing (phonetic) about it --

         23                 MR. McALLAN: No, absolutely not. And

         24  you should understand, it is not the closest

         25  hospital necessarily --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: No. It may be

          3  it is a burn and you go to a burn in it.

          4                 MR. McALLAN: It is the closest

          5  appropriate hospital. And you have to remember that

          6  burn patients, they are exceptional cases, and there

          7  are only a couple of burn centers in the whole City

          8  of New York, such as Cornell and so forth, but that

          9  is a very special situation.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I am just

         11  using it as an example.

         12                 MR. McALLAN: Yes, sir.

         13                 But the question is, where does the

         14  cardiac, or where does the individual having a heart

         15  attack go? Most New York City emergency rooms are

         16  quite capable of dealing with heart attack patients

         17  and are quite capable of dealing with pulmonary

         18  edema patients, they would not necessarily be

         19  capable of dealing with the burn patients. Of

         20  course, there are a number of trauma centers that

         21  can also deal with say serious motor vehicle

         22  accidents and so forth, but there are situations

         23  where if the patient is in cardiac arrest they

         24  should go to the closest hospital, he or she should

         25  go to the closest 911 receiving hospital.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: You are

          3  right. Thank you very much.

          4                 MR. McALLAN: But much more important

          5  to that, as you say, we need to have a neutral

          6  system, and I appreciate your comments there to

          7  bring that up.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you very

          9  much, again, and we will be chewing on all of this

         10  that we have heard today, and our objective is to

         11  make sure that the services that are provided to the

         12  residents of the City of New York is done in an

         13  appropriate fashion, and those individuals who are

         14  responsible for the providing that care, are given a

         15  fair wage for a fair job, a fair chance at a fair

         16  career, because it is all necessary to make sure

         17  that the system works for the people of the City of

         18  New York.

         19                 Seeing that there are no others to

         20  testify, this hearing is adjourned.

         21                 MR. McALLAN: Thank you.

         22                 (Hearing concluded at 3:52 p.m.)

         23

         24

         25
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